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Part 1: General Information

1.1 Submission of the Annual Report to the  
 Executive Authority

MEC SAKKIE JENNER
MEC OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS, SPORT AND RECREATION

In accordance with Section 40(1) (d) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, the Public 
Service Act, 1994, and the National Treasury Regulations (NTR), I hereby submit the Annual Re-
port on financial statements, performance indicators and departmental activities for the 2008/09 
financial year of the Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 
March 2009,.

It is important to note that in terms of Section 65(1) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act, 
1999, it is required to table the report in the Provincial Parliament by 31 August 2009. If the De-
partment is unable to do so, it must, in terms of Section 65(a) of the Public Finance Management 
Act, 1999, provide a written explanation to the Provincial Legislature within six months of the end 
of the relevant financial year - that is by 30 September 2009.

MR BRENT WALTERS  
ACTING HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
31 JULY 2009

PR123/2009
ISBN:  978-0-621-38646-2
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The Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport (DCAS) experi-
enced a changing of the guard four months into the financial 
year, as a new ministry was established following a Cabinet 
reshuffle in the Western Cape. At the same time, an acting 
Head of Department was appointed to see the Department 
through to the end of the financial year. 

Significantly, the leadership and staff of the Department 
contributed to the renewed sense of strategic direction, en-
hanced compliance and energy which resulted in the devel-
opment of five strategic thrusts which guided the work of the 
department for the year under review.

In analyzing the reach and depth of our work, a decision was 
made to focus our work on five broad strategic thrusts: talent 
identification, excellence, mass participation, partnerships and 
policy development. The influence of these broad thrusts can be 
seen throughout the work as reflected in this annual report. 

The range and depth of projects and outreach programmes be-
ing delivered by this small department are being felt to vary-
ing degrees in all communities: rural and urban; rich and poor,  
in schools,  by sport organizations, cultural organizations, librar-
ies, researchers, academics and the general public at large. 

With a scope of work reaching from archives and libraries; 
to arts and culture, museums, heritage; sport and the 2010 
Fifa World Cup it is clear that this is a department at work on 
many fronts and within a variety of contexts.

A key focus for the year under review was the leveraging 
of social legacy programmes associated with the 2010 Fifa 
World Cup. The buzz phrase in our Department is that we 
need to make our people “touch the world cup.” For the year 
under review, we believe that we have also assisted the peo-
ple of the region to touch and feel the work of government.

During the year under review and in partnership with other 
government departments both nationally and provincially, as 
well as with the City of Cape Town, we mobilized our re-
sources to leave behind a legacy of the World Cup for future 
generations. The 2010 programme focused on the promo-
tion of national symbols, hosting of street football campaigns 
in marginalised communities and the launch of the Buyela 
eBaleni (Nothing beats Live)campaign, as well as  support 
for  the development of the Green Point (R212 million) and 
Philippi (R20 million) stadia. These key actions have set a 
platform to ensure the successful delivery of this great event 
and more importantly leave a lasting legacy. 

On an administrative front major advances were made in hav-
ing a new macrostructure for the Department approved by the 
Cabinet. This will, amongst others, assist the Department with 
improved service delivery and optimal usage of its resources.

As the accounting officer, a significant portion of time was 
spent eliminating practices not in line with the PFMA and 
changing the focus of staff to be more delivery focused with-
out compromising the principles of good governance.

The Department also made huge advances in reducing the va-
cancy rate from 18% to 11%. This has resulted in a more effec-
tive and efficient personnel corps and a decrease in staff turnover, 
which in turn has led to more stability within the Department.  

In terms of financial management, the Supply Chain Man-
agement component was realigned and with assistance from 
Provincial Treasury, processes were streamlined. The Depart-
ment received an unqualified Audit Report from the Auditor-
General for the year under review and spent in excess of 99, 
6% of its allocated budget.

The Western Cape is fast becoming the cultural and sporting 
hub of South Africa as is evidenced by the following exam-
ples of events which took place in the region and in which 
DCAS played a significant role:
 

 
 sport codes

The Department was also instrumental in the promotion of the 
marginalized Nama and Sign languages and annual awareness 
programmes to promote the isiXhosa language and the devel-
opment of the Historic Mission Stations education project and 
specifically the work done at Genadendal, in cooperation with 
the Genadendal Mission Museum. In addition, the Department 
supported 78 cultural organizations and 98 sport federations 
with funding to assist in development programmes

As this just highlights a small proportion of the work we have 
achieved, we believe that during the year under review we 
have worked towards the vision of an active, creative and 
empowered Western Cape and lived up to our  aim  to involve 
our citizens in the sporting and cultural life of the region.

MR BRENT WALTERS        
ACTING HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1.2 Introduction by the Head of the Department
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1.3  Information on the Ministry
1.3.1 

During the period under review, the Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport reported to Mr MP Jacobs for the period 1 April 
2008 to 31 July 2008. Due to a Cabinet reshuffle, Mr C Dugmore was appointed as the MEC for Cultural Affairs, Sport and 
Recreation for the remainder of the financial year.

1.3.2 INSTITUTIONS REPORTING TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY ARE:

1.3.3 
No new  bills were submitted to the legislature during the year under review.

1.3.4 MINISTERIAL VISITS ABROAD.

MEC Whitey Jacobs visited Mozambique from 18 to 22 June 2008.  The purpose of the visit was to build relations with the 

and the Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport in 2003. 

1.4 Mission Statement

VISION
To be a creative, active and empowered Western Cape.

MISSION

towards strengthening the creative and wellness economies of the Western Cape.

1.5 Legislative Mandate

VISION
To be a creative, active and empowered Western Cape.

MISSION

towards strengthening the creative and wellness economies of the Western Cape.
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LEGISLATION

National Legislation:  General

Annual Division of Revenue Acts DORA

Administrative Justice Act, 2000 Act 3 of 2000

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 Act 75 of 1997

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 Act 108 of 1996

Electronic Communications and Transactions Act, 2002 Act 25 of 2002

Employment Equity Act, 1998 Act 55 of 1998

Labour Relations Act, 1995 Act 66 of 1995

Treasury Regulations Gazette 27388 dated 15 March 2005

Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 Act 85 of 1993

Pension Funds Act, 1956 Act 24 of 1956

Prescription Act, 1943 Act 18 of 1943

Prescription Act, 1969 Act 68 of 1969

Prescription Amendment Act, 1984 Act 11 of 1984

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 Act 2 of 2000

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 Act 1 of 1999

Public Holidays Act, 1994 Act 36 of 1994

Public Service Act, 1994 Proclamation 103 of 1994

Public Service Regulations, 2001 R.1 of 5 January 2001

Skills Development Act, 1998 Act 97 of 1998

Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 Act 9 of 1999

Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1941 Act 30 of 1941

Act 4 of 2000

South African Schools Act, 1996 Act 84 of 1996

Framework for Supply Chain Management Gazette 25767 dated 5 December 2003

Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005 Act 13 of 2005

National Legislation:  Cultural Affairs

Commission for the Promotion and Protection of the Rights of Cultural, 
Religious and Linguistic Communities Act, 2002 Act 19 of 2002

Cultural Institutions Act, 1998 Act 119 of 1998

Cultural Promotion Act, 1983 Act 35 of 1983

Culture Affairs Act (House of Assembly), 1989 Act 65 of 1989

National Archives of South Africa Act, 1996 Act 43 of 1996

National Arts Council Act, 1997 Act 56 of 1997

National Council for Library and Information Service Act, 2001 Act 6 of 2001

Act 73 of 1997
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National Heritage Council Act, 1999 Act 11 of 1999

National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 Act 25 of 1999

Pan South African Language Board Act, 1995 Act 59 of 1995

South African Geographical Names Council Act, 1998 Act 118 of 1998

The National Library of South Africa Act, 1998 Act 92 of 1998

World Heritage Convention Act, 1999 Act 49 of 1999

National Legislation:  Sport

Boxing and Wrestling Control Act, 1954 Act 39 of 1954

National Sport and Recreation Act as Amended, 1998 Act 110 of 1998

South African Sports Commission Act, 1998 Act 109 of 1998

South African Sports Commission Amendment Act, 1999 Act 33 of 1999

South African Institute for Drug Free Sport Act, 1997 Act 14 of 1997

South African Boxing Act, 2001 Act 11 of 2001

2010 FIFA World Cup Special Measures Act, 2006 Act 10 of 2006

Second 2010 FIFA World Cup Special Measures Act, 2006 Act 11 of 2006

South African Schools Act, 1996 Act 84 of 1996

Provincial Legislation:  General 

Constitution of the Western Cape, 1997 Act 1 of 1998

Western Cape Land Administration Act, 1998 Act 6 of 1998

Western Cape Law on the Powers and Privileges of the Provincial Legislature, 
1995 Law 3 of 1995

Western Cape Tourism Act, 1997 Act 3 of 1997

Western Cape Provincial Schools Education Act, 1997 Act 12 of 1997 

Provincial Legislation:  Cultural Affairs

Western Cape Cultural Commission and Cultural Councils Act, 1998 Act 14 of 1998

Western Cape Heritage Resource Management Regulations PN 336 of 25 October 2002

Western Cape Heritage Resource Management Regulations PN 298 of 29 August 2003

Western Cape Heritage Resource Management Regulations PN of 2004

Western Cape Heritage Resource Management Regulations PN of 2005

Western Cape Provincial Languages Act, 1998 Act 13 of 1998

Provincial Legislation:  Library and Archive Services

Provincial Archives and Records Service of the Western Cape Act, 2006 Act 3 of 2006

Provincial Legislation:  Sport 

None

Ordinances
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Museums Ordinance, 1975 Ordinance 8 of 1975

Ordinance 11 of 1979

Provincial Library Service Ordinance, 1981 Ordinance 16 of 1981

Policies

General:

Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport (DCAS) Risk Management Policy Approved 19 September 2008

Culture:

Western Cape Language Policy PN 369/2001 of 27 November 2001

National White Paper on Arts, Culture and Heritage (1996) 

Funding Policy for Arts and Culture

Sport:

National White Paper on Sport and Recreation

Western Cape School Sport Policy (2002)

Funding Policy for Sport
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PART 2:  PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 

2.1 Voted Funds

R’000

Appropriation
Main    

Appropriation
Adjusted 

Appropriation
Actual Amount 

Spent
Over / Under  
Expenditure

502 203 497 740 502 203 499 970 2 233

Responsible Minister MEC of Cultural Affairs, Sport and Recreation

Administering Department Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport

Accounting Officer Head of Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport

2.2 Aim of the Vote
The aim is to inspire more people to engage actively in sport and cultural activities, as participants, spectators and supporters.

2.3 Key Deliverables, Programmes and Achievements

KEY DELIVERABLES

 
 2010 FIFA World Cup

 
 of learning and heritage appreciation.

 
 school sport.

PROGRAMMES

CHIEF DIRECTORATE:  FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

The functions of this Chief Directorate aim to:   
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CHIEF DIRECTORATE:  CULTURAL AFFAIRS

The functions of this Chief Directorate aim to develop, transform and promote cultural affairs through the various initiatives and 
programmes to the benefit of all in the Western Cape.

DIRECTORATE: ARTS, CULTURE AND LANGUAGE

The functions of this Directorate aim to:     
   

 
 various initiatives and programmes.

 
 and development of culture and heritage, and further assist heritage resource management by implementing the national  

 
DIRECTORATE: LIBRARY AND ARCHIVE SERVICES
 
The functions of this Directorate aim to:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DIRECTORATE: SPORT AND RECREATION

The functions of this directorate aim to:     

SPORT:
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 sport events.

 
 from the tournament. 

RECREATION:

SCHOOL SPORT:

 
 accessed by all.

 
 from the tournament.

2010 WORLD CUP UNIT:

 

 

 

ACHIEVEMENTS

CHIEF DIRECTORATE: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

Service and Administration.
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CHIEF DIRECTORATE: CULTURAL AFFAIRS

Following is the list of recipients in each category:

2008 ARTS, CULTURE, HERITAGE, MUSEUM, LANGUAGE, LIBRARY AND 
ARCHIVES AWARDS RECIPIENT

HERITAGE AWARDS

resources

interpretation of Heritage resources in the Western Cape

Dr Antonia Malan

MUSEUM AWARDS

Historical environment and Time Travel 

ARTS AND CULTURE AWARDS

Contribution to visual arts Estelle Jacobs

Contribution to performing arts:
Dance

Drama

Music

The Jungle Theatre Company

Disability in arts

Most innovative community arts centre

LANGUAGE AWARDS

LIBRARIES AWARDS

Most community involved public library
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ARCHIVES AWARDS

through public articles or physical visits

SPECIAL AWARDS

language, libraries and archives

Outstanding achievement of youth in the field of arts, culture, heritage, 
language, libraries and archives

LIFETIME ACHIEVEMENT AWARD Suleiman Christian

Johaar Mosaval

LEGENDS OF THE ARTS AWARDS
Errol Dyers

Christopher Kindo

Other achievements of the Chief Directorate were:

publication entitled, This place has meaning: Case Studies of Time Travels and Historic Environment Education in the Western 

DIRECTORATE ARTS, CULTURE AND LANGUAGE

art forms and appreciate, through interaction, the cultural diversity of the community.

to problems faced by language practitioners. 
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DIRECTORATE: LIBRARY AND ARCHIVE SERVICES

land claims and rights, divorce papers, history of sea fisheries, architecture, military history, education, immigration, tribes, 
apartheid, political prisoners, tourism, communication, religions, archaeology, Cape islands, historical maps and mapping, ge

the archives and its functions.

34% more than the target of 6 000.  

Service processed 372 125 items of library materials for distribution to the 335 library centres in the Western Cape.  This is 
43% more than the target of 260 000. 

libraries and to promote of a culture of reading. 
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DIRECTORATE:  SPORT AND RECREATION

SPORT

 
 
 

 
 disputes in sport.

RECREATION

laborative approach, Recreation initiated and promoted activities and programmes that specifically focussed on the provision 

activities that include substance abuse, crime and gangsterism.

SCHOOL SPORT

School Sport Management:
 

 
 services at point of need. 

 

School Sport Mass Participation Programme (SSMPP):
 

 
 

 sport assistants that have been placed in various schools throughout the province. 



20

 

Competitive School Sport:

High Performance School Sport:
 

 

 

2010 FIFA WORLD CUP UNIT
 

 
 

 
 

 
 the Confederations Cup in 2009.

 

 
 

 of display.
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2.4 Overview of the Service Delivery Environment for   
 2008/09
THE CONTEXT WITHIN WHICH THE DEPARTMENT SOUGHT TO IMPLEMENT THE DEPARTMENTAL STRATEGIC PLAN 
CAN BE SUMMARISED AS FOLLOWS:

recreation sectors of all provinces.

effective guidance in financial administration, human resource management and management services.

influence the nature of the service.

The Arts and Culture Component contributed to building social and human capital through the presentation of programmes that 
focussed on the development of communities in a holistic and integrated manner. 

form presents. 

and resources across cultural differences.

ing and museums have risen to the challenge of providing both formal and informal education services.

There has been an increase in the number of invitations for staff to address gatherings on the role of the Heritage Resources 

Information Communication Technology infrastructure in rural public libraries in the Western Cape.  The adverse impact of 

ule 5 A of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996, remains unresolved.

application form. 
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primarily is the child at school. To further service the need, the DCAS: School Sport has placed sport assistants at a number of 

2.5 Overview of the Organisational Environment for   
 2008/09 

This has resulted in some, although minimal, impact on service delivery in that section.

local institutions of higher learning has been established in an attempt to address this problem.

Services emerged. This contributed to delays in filling some of the critical vacant posts as applicants did not necessarily meet 
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respective regional sport councils.

In addition to this, the School Sport Sub-directorate works in partnership with various organisations, which includes 
the following:

2.6 Strategic Overview and Key Policy Developments for  
 2008/09

As indicated earlier in the report, the assistance to local library authorities in renderering public library services by financial 

public library services.  The grant partly addressed some challenges pertaining to service delivery in public libraries.

chives and the registering of researchers. Investigations to draft and update other policy documents are in process:

 



24

2.7 Receipt and Departmental Payments

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURE   

2005/06
Actual
R’000

2006/07
Actual
R’000

2007/08
Actual 
R’000

2008/09
Target 
R’000

2008/09
Actual
R’000

% Deviation 
from target

2 216 2 207 360 277.22

Sale of goods and 
services

125 51 230 24.32

Financial transactions in 
assets and liabilities

69 222 451 171 100.00

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL 
RECEIPTS

2 662 2 480 1 316 545 1 759 222.20

Programmes
Voted for 
2008/09

R’000

Roll-overs  
and 

adjustment
R’000

Virement
R’000

Total voted 
funds
R’000

Actual 
Expenditure

R’000

Variance
R’000

1. Administration 746 33 423 37

2. Cultural Affairs 55 512 2 337 56 359 56 265

Information Service
1 542 105 199 151

4. Sport and Recreation 307 230 154 307 222 305 271 1 951

Total 497 740 4 463 0 502 203 499 970 2 233
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2.8 Programme 1:  Administration
PURPOSE

The purpose of this programme is to manage the Department strategically, render corporate  and financial support, give stra

of the Department and its public entities.    

SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS 

SUB-PROGRAMME 1.2: CORPORATE SERVICES

communicated to the relevant parties.

The Department assisted the public entities to improve their financial administrative infrastructure by providing guidance and advice.

SUB-PROGRAMME 1.3: MANAGEMENT SERVICES

MONITORING AND EVALUATION

MONITORING
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The other monitoring visits undertaken by the component included the following:

EVALUATION
Evaluation is done in order to ensure effective and efficient utilisation of public resources, to improve management decision 

and maintains its institutional memory. 

The evaluations undertaken in the year under review were:

the results from the evaluation actually contribute to the improvement of service delivery.

REPORTING

Some of the reports compiled by the component included the following:

VALUE ADDED SERVICES TO THE DEPARTMENT
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MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION

business of the Department.

SOCIAL CAPITAL UNIT

 

 

 
  contribution.

 
 providing Departmental input.

SUB PROGRAMME 1.2

Sub-programme: Name of Institution
Amount Transferred

R

Corporate Services Sector Education and Training Authority 99 961

Households 11 939

SUB TOTAL 111 900

TOTAL 111 900
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2.9 Programme 2:  Cultural Affairs
PURPOSE

historical resources of the Western Cape for the benefit of current and future generations by rendering a variety of services as 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES

The measurable objectives with regard to Cultural Affairs are to:   
  

 
SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

SUB-PROGRAMME 2.2:  ARTS AND CULTURE

cultural forums.
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The Department has a funding policy that enables and guides the allocation for financial assistance to cultural organisations 
that promote respect for and support cultural organisations that reflect cultural diversity. After inviting interested arts and 
culture organisations to apply for financial assistance through the media and other forms of communication, the Department 

order to encourage and ensure interaction amongst art practitioners and trainers at all levels. 

Staff of the Department is responsible for maintaining and managing the seven cultural facilities placed under the auspices of 

maintenance of this property.

programmes on craft, visual arts, drama, music and dance.  

EXISTING BODIES AND FORUMS SUPPORTED BY THE DEPARTMENT DURING 2008/2009

1 Western Cape Cultural Commission

2

3 Overberg Regional Music structure

4

5 Eden Regional  Music structure

6 Winelands Regional Music structure

7

8

9

10 Cederberg Cultural Forum

11

12 Oudtshoorn Cultural Forum

13

14 Knysna Cultural Forum

15

16
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financial year. 

visual and performing arts.

 

COLLABORATIVE INITIATIVES WITH PROFESSIONAL 
ORGANISATION

PARTNERS

1
Western Cape Musicians Association, 

2 and the Western Cape Department of Economic 
Development and Tourism

Cultural Forums

3

4
regional music structure Cultural Forums

5
forums

6

7
and music organisations
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visual and literary arts.  

tions, bodies and organisations, at local, national and international level, have afforded communities an opportunity to be 

COLLABORATION BETWEEN INSTITUTIONS AND PROGRAMMES TO ADVANCE ARTISTIC DISCIPINES

INSTITUTION OR/AND PROGRAMME ARTISTIC DISCIPLINE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
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other African nationals hold in our society.
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SUB-PROGRAMME 2.3:  MUSEUM AND HERITAGE RESOURCE SERVICES

MUSEUM SERVICES

Museum Technical Services assisted affiliated museums to be more accessible.  Five museums received advice regarding ac

all affiliated museums have sufficient staff to count every visitor and a number of museums provide free access and therefore 

implementation of a more efficient and effective system to monitor visitor attendance at affiliated museums.

 

an average of 3 programmes reaching a total of 31 170 people.
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Museum, Stellenbosch Museum and the Wheat Industry Museum, Moorreesburg.

launched at the Cape Medical Museum.

PREVENTATIVE CONSERVATION PLANS PRODUCED FOR AFFILIATED MUSEUMS

1 Worcester Museum

2

3

4

5

6

7 Stellenbosch Museum

8

9 Togryersmuseum in Ceres

10

11

12 Wellington Museum
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the Department.

AFFILIATED MUSEUM
NUMBER OF EDUCATION 

PROGRAMMES PRESENTED

NUMBER OF PARTICPANTS 
IN EDUCATION 

PROGRAMMES PER 
MUSEUM

120 5623

2

Caledon Museum 2 130

31 1514

72 4074

3465

25

37 4163

42 2029

Montagu Museum 4 436

Old Harbour Museum, Hermanus 1411

4 531

30 2236

315

2 120

111 3419

Stellenbosch Museum 12 7603

Togryersmuseum, Ceres 19 1164

Wellington Museum

Wheat Industry Museum, Moorreesburg 34 1253

Worcester Museum 25 12605

Total 652 56051
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HERITAGE RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Heritage Resources Management Services of the Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport provides professional, technical 
and administrative support to Heritage Western Cape,  

Resources Act, 1999, regarding the identification of heritage resources and the proposed grading of these through the inte
grated development planning processes on the one hand and the assessment of competencies to act as a heritage resources 

in February 2009.

management of grade III heritage resources. The process is ongoing.

ever, be reached regarding the location of the memorial.  

A substantial portion of the responsibility of Heritage Western Cape is to consider applications for the alteration or demolition 
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many aspects not covered by previous heritage legislation, many local authority officials do not have a clear understanding of 
the implication of the Act.  

 
SUB-PROGRAMME 2.4:  LANGUAGE SERVICES

 

CONSERVATION BODIES ADVISED BY HERITAGE WESERN CAPE

1

2 Stellenbosch Heritage Foundation 

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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as Deputy Chairperson. 

 

of Stellenbosch. This functional training has since been attended by many language practitioners from various departments.

PROJECTS OF THE LANGUAGE COMMITTEE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
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in the Western Cape.
  

ents, guardians and hostel parents of hearing impaired and deaf children in Worcester and Khayelitsha respectively. The aim 

up advanced classes and to sustain the communication development process.

During February 2009 the Department hosted a foreign language conference to determine the challenges facing service 

yet been received.
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SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 

measures / service delivery 
indicators

Actual performance 
against target

Target Actual

Arts and Culture

established that reflect cultural 
diversity

established
5

established that reflect cultural 
diversity

16 16

established that reflect cultural 
diversity

50% 50%

Arts and Culture facilities 
provided, supported and 
maintained across communities

supported

programming of facilities across 
communities

Diversity of groups utilising 
facilities 

6 6

programming of facilities across 
communities

Diversity of  programmes 
presented at facilities 6 14

Capacitated persons for 
community arts centres and 
cultural forums facilities

60 49

various genres professional organisations
6 7

various genres
2 2

various genres
1 1

various genres funded
125

that attract or respond to 
opportunity  and support such 

have the potential to channel talent 
6 6

that attract or respond to 
opportunity  and support such 

5 7

 
institutions and programmes to 
advance artistic disciplines

30 33

Museum and 
Heritage Resource 

Services

Consulted and approved 

authorities
2 1
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Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 

measures / service delivery 
indicators

Actual performance 
against target

Target Actual

Museum and 
Heritage Resource 

Services

2 1

resources

granted competency to 

resources

1
the City of Cape 

1
could not be 

reached regard

ing the location 

of the memorial

resourced and 75% of approved 
staff establishment filled

4 4

resourced and 75% of approved 
staff establishment filled

 
19 19

 
4 4

Advice on infrastructure 
improvement including improved 1 1

Report reflecting accurate 
collection data facilities museums

 

 

programmes museum
2

Average 4 
per museum

outreach programs per museum
24

Average 3  

programmes per 

museum reaching 

total of 31 170 

people

bodies, local authorities and 
heritage outreach programs

4 4

929

600 765

100 416

Collections policies at museums 
monitored and valuated maintained

12 12

policies produced by museums 
to minimum standards

collections developed
12

12 museums 

recorded a total 
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Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 

measures / service delivery 
indicators

Actual performance 
against target

Target Actual

Museum and 
Heritage Resource 

Services

languages

1 2

languages
programs per museum

4

Average 23 

education  

programmes 

per museum

educational programs per 
museum

1 140
Average of 2002 

participants per 

museum

Minutes reflecting number of 
cases discussed and heritage 
resources preserved

plenary meetings held
36 51

delegations

Decisions

Decisions

Committee Decisions

Assessments approved Assessments approved
451 HIAs 
and AIAs

4
Western Cape.

of HWC
4 4

Meetings of committees of Meetings of committees of 
22

17 scheduled 

12 scheduled 

advised
4

Kannaland  

 

Monthly reports
advised

4

Stellenbosch 

Erfenisstigting

Stellenbosch 

Cultural  

Foundation  

De Rust Heritage 

Society
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Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 

measures / service delivery 
indicators

Actual performance 
against target

Target Actual

Museum and 
Heritage Resource 

Services

Research reports
2010

1 In progress

Research report
Research completed into the 
establishment of a football 
museum

1
 

Monthly reports
Quarterly reports

and Transformation Compliant
12

Interventions at 

5 museums in 

progress

Language Services

A supported and sustained 

Committee

Amount of funds provided to the  

Committee

Once per 
financial year

One 
payment

Meetings held
committee meetings held

meetings 
per annum

2

Appointed language practioners implemented the language 
policy

12 12

that  
implemented the language 
policy

30 0

Chair provincial language 

implementation of language 
policy

6 meetings 5

Multilingualism promoted
that promote multilingualism

2 2

redressed
aimed at redressing past 
linguistic imbalances

2 2

languages and sign language 
developed

that develop previously 

sign language

2 5

translation, editing and 
proofreading services provided 
to all departments 

 
services have been provided

12 11

Documents translated
 

been translated or proof read
60 270

Interpreting services to provided 
to DCAS

interpreting services have been 
provided to DCAS

12 12
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Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 

measures / service delivery 
indicators

Actual performance 
against target

Target Actual

Language Services

Information and programmes on 
2010 made available in the three 
official languages of the province

 
and edited

5 4

Additiion of foreign languages 
incorporated into museum 
interpretation

incorporated into museum 
interpretation

1 0

Sub-programme Name of Institution
Amount Transferred

R

Arts and Culture

Western Cape Cultural Commission 1 153 100

130 000

Arts and Culture Festivals and Events

Kaapse Klopse Karnaval 1 099 925

50 000

Dream Centre 27 000

70 000

75 000

Hermanus Whale Festival 100 000

WC Musicians Association 10 000

Suidoosterfees 100 000

Genre:  Craft / Creative Industries

37 000

50 000

31 250

60 000

37 500

60 000

31 250

60 000

60 000

TRANSFER PAYMENTS  



45
Arts and Culture

60 000

62 500

Genre:  Dance

Atlantis Kultuur Assosiasie 30 000

750 000

400 000

100 000

500 000

50 000

100 000

62 500

50 000

Totally Free 75 000

Genre:  Drama

70 000

200 000

50 000

Cape Heart Theatre Community and Education Theatre 52 500

Flom Community Theatre 35 000

60 000

30 000

30 000

Jungle Theatre Company 40 000

60 000

Khayelitsha Theatre Forum 60 000

30 000

50 000

120 000

40 000

60 000
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Arts and Culture

125 000

30 000

25 000

Samoa Theatre group 20 000

40 000

The Darling Trust 70 000

The Magnet Theatre Educational Trust 60 000

Tygerberg International Eisteddfod 35 000

50 000

Genre:  Library Arts

40 000

60 000

40 000

25 000

Genre:  Music

Athlone Academy of Music 60 000

750 000

750 000

50 000

100 000

50 000

The Music Therapy Community Clinic

Western Cape Musicians Association 400 000

Western Cape Choral Music Association 150 000

Genre:  Visual Arts

25 000
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Arts and Culture

Kunsvereniging Stellenbosch 43 750

50 000 

60 000

20 000

Wesland Kunsvereniging 20 000

20 000

SUB TOTAL 10 147 595

Museum and 
Heritage Resource 

Services

Province-aided Museums

Caledon Museum 34 740

96 660

Wellington Museum 23 214

Drostdy Museum 193 500

30 240

Huguenot Memorial Museum 109 620

Montagu Museum

Old Harbour Museum

52 560

SA Sendinggestig Museum 22 692

39 060

Stellenbosch Museum

Togryers Museum 23 244

Wheat Industry Museum 36 900

Local Museums

Robertson Museum 9 776

12 264

4 935

9 775
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Museum and 
Heritage Resource 

Services

Other Museums

200 000

Heritage Western Cape 950 000

SUB TOTAL 3 043 152

Language Services

252 000

125 000

SUB TOTAL 377 000

Households

47 472

SUB TOTAL 47 472

TOTAL 13 615 219

2.10  Programme 3:  Library and Archives Services

PURPOSE

The purpose of this programme is to assist local library authorities in rendering public library services and providing an archive 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

SUB-PROGRAMME 3.1: MANAGEMENT
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SUB-PROGRAMME 3.2: LIBRARY SERVICES

funding through the conditional grant made it possible to purchase more material.
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The number of library users is an important measuring tool as it provides an indication  of the use of libraries by the communities 

SUB-PROGRAMME 3.3: ARCHIVES

The Records Management section of the Western Cape Archives and Records Service continued to render records management ser

The Records Management section of the Western Cape Archives and Records Service is responsible for assessing and approving 

their proposed records classification systems.  To enable governmental bodies to rectify matters, the Western Cape Archives 

GOVERNMENTAL BODIES INSPECTED BY RECORDS MANAGEMENT

1

2

3 Ministry of Social Development

4 Ministry of Finance

5 Ministry of Housing

6 Ministry of Education

7 Ministry of Cultural Affairs, Sport and Recreation

Ministry of Finance, Economic Development and Tourism

9 Western Cape Education Department

10 Department of Agriculture

11 Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport

12 Department of Social Development

13

14

15

16 Cape Winelands District Municipality

17

19 Stellenbosch Municipality
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Training for records management staff of all governmental bodies is provided by the Western Cape Archives and Records 

 

The number of researchers and other users consulting archival material in the Western Cape Archives and Records Service far 

normal office hours, but are also open for the public every Thursday until 19:00 and the first Saturday of each calendar month 
from 09:00 until 13:00.  Researchers and the general public need primary sources as proof to serve as evidence of transactions 

The archival material in possession of the Western Cape Archives and Records Service has to be data coded.  To ensure long 

At the end of March 2009, the archival records housed in the Western Cape Archives and Records Service consisted of an esti
mated 27 000 linear metres.  The Western Cape Archives and Records Service must arrange and describe records to facilitate 

LOCATION OF TRAINING COURSES NUMBER OF ATTENDEES

1 31

2 Worcester 36

3 25

4 11

5 Stellenbosch 13
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represents a 241% increase.  

has therefore become a challenge.
 

for records of enduring value that are not yet ready for a transfer to an archives repository.   

Staff from the Western Cape Archives and Records Service also participated in international, national and provincial events.  The 

for public lectures and a media day event. 
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SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS 

Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 
measures / service  
delivery indicators

Actual performance  
against target

Target Actual

Library Services

Transfer payment assistance 
for building of library facilities

financed

ICT facilities have been provided

1 1

260 000 372 125

public libraries subscriptions
6 916

guidance to libraries by professionals
1 163 1 191

development
programmes provided to 
public library staff

13 15

Culture of reading promoted 6 9

annum
1 173 532

265 promotional materials for 265

received for 

distribution.  

distribution 

vehicle, but did 

not received any 

for distribution.

Archives

Inspection reports of 
bodies inspected

19

systems
classifications systems 
assessed

52 27

Approved classification 
systems

classification systems 
approved 

21

Courses conducted for 
records management staff 
in the province 

for records management 
staff

5 5

Trained records 
management staff management staff trained

100 116

Authorisation issued for 
legal disposal of records authorities issued  

9 9
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Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance 
measures / service  
delivery indicators

Actual performance  
against target

Target Actual

Archives

researchers consulting 
archival material

researchers consulting 
archival material

6 000

Received and processed 

received and processed
1 000

Entries submitted on 
entries submitted on 50 000 63 694

Total number of visitors 
received at the archives

visiting repository
6 400

Arranged and described 
archival groups for retrieval

arranged and described for 
retrieval

6 30

Restored archival 120 409

renovated facilities
repaired

4 42

Arranged and described 
archives arranged and described

350

Records transferred of transfers received from 
governmental bodies

200 632.10

rolled out to communities

programmes rolled out to  
 5 15

Events archives participated 

nationally and provincially
participated in internationally 13

material developed
11
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CONDITIONAL GRANT:  ENHANCEMENT OF LOCAL PUBLIC LIBRARIES

ENHANCEMENT OF LOCAL PUBLIC LIBRARY SERVICES

counts.   Although the figure of 295 staff members employed by the municipalities represents an increase in the target set, 

and the payment of staff managing the grant.

ties for the payment of additional staff at public libraries, increasing the number of staff from 212 to 295. 

established 16 Information and Communication Technology sites at public libraries.  These facilities provide public access to the 

Grant outputs Performance indicator
Actual Performance against Target

Target Actual

Additional number of staff appointed at 
public libraries

235 295

sites established
5 5

20 16

Timely collation of reports and 
timely submission of reports to 3 

6

purchased
6 000 6 993

purchased
1 200 2 101

Indigenous language material purchased 6 000 13 770

maintained
76 11

programmes
34 14
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in the Overstrand.

more copies than originally planned.

RURAL LIBRARY CONNECTIVITY PROJECT

LIBRARY MUNICIPALITY

1

2 Thembalethu

3 Conville

4 Cederberg Municipality

5 Stellenbosch Stellenbosch Municipality

6 and Cloetesville Stellenbosch Municipality

7 Kannaland Municipality

9 Mimosa 

10 Moorreesburg 

11

12

13 Riviersonderend 

14

15 De Doorns 

16
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increase in the copies purchased.

completed by the end of June 2009.  
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TRANSFER PAYMENTS       

Sub-programme Name of Institution
Amount Transferred

R

Library Services

12 000

Capital library subsidies

2 000 000

Conditional Grant:  Library Services

477 171

741 593

Cape Agulhas Municipality 259 976

Cederberg Municipality 246 052

Central Karoo Municipality 41 253

Eden District Municipality

755 946

Knysna Municipality

67 633

346 139

501 303

Oudtshoorn Municipality 459 602

Overstrand Municipality 505 419

Saldanha Municipality 

Stellenbosch Municipality 573 977

460 052

221 249

520 469

West Coast District Municipality

474 964

SUB TOTAL 26 865 263

Households 190 959

TOTAL 27 056 222
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2.11  Programme 4:  Sport and Recreation
PURPOSE

vices. Furthermore, to promote a healthy lifestyle and to develop school sport by ensuring mass participation, development of 

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES

The measurable objectives with regard to Sport and Recreation are:

 
 
 

 recreation in the 21 high priority areas.
 

 

 

 

 

 
 programme.  

 
 sport and recreation bodies.

 
 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES, INDICATORS AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

SUB-PROGRAMME 4.2: SPORT 

office has focussed largely on meeting the challenges of drug abuse, crime, violence and gangsterism in identified priority 
and nodal areas.
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events supported on the limited budget included provincial, national and international amateur events. 

finalised the colours for the four sport regions of the Western Cape. In addition to this, an interim Western Cape Sport Council 

SUB-PROGRAMME 4.3: RECREATION

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

SUB-PROGRAMME 4.4: SCHOOL SPORT

School Sport Management:

and delivery of school sport mass participation, competitive school sport and high performance school sport programmes.

Competitive School Sport:

High Performance School Sport:

SUB-PROGRAMME 4.5: 2010 FIFA WORLD CUP UNIT
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Sub-programmes Outputs
Output performance measures 

/ service delivery indicators

Actual performance against target

Target Actual

Sport

supported
and Regional Sport Federations 

and Sport Institutions supported

122 111

6 6

225 143

Facilities constructed 1 0

Facilities upgraded 5

international events
25 32

Capacity building courses 22 10

Sport days 4 4

20 000 21 040

450 450

Transformation Committee 5 5

Athletes, administrators, technical 

officials, and coaches supported 

through high performance 

programmes

 

technical officials and coaches 

supported through High 
20 29

administrators, technical 

officials and coaches attended 

international events. 

administrators, technical 

officials and coaches to attend 

international events

75 70

Sport Administrators and 

volunteers trained and  volunteers trained
795 61

Coaches trained 460

Technical officials trained
trained

130 124

Athletes benefitting from Sport 

development activities from Sport development activities
10 135 6570

Recreation

Recreation structures supported
supported

6 7

Dedicated facilities provided by 

affected municipalities

 

provided by affected municipalities
45 45

programmes 
50 55

events and programmes
recreational sport events and 

programmes

300 000

250 150

SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS 
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School sport

6 150 6147

Teams delivered

high performance structures and 

programmes structures and programmes

2 020 1774

Facilities provided and supports
supported

6 6

5 5

460 637

120

Recognition of achievers 4 4

Recognition of achievers 44 44

Educators trained as coaches
coaches

150

Educators trained as facilitators
facilitators

150 150

Edcuators trained as facilitators
technical officials 

150 150

hosted
4 2

 

educators trained
240 321

sport school provincial sport school
300 262

Camps held
camps held

2010 FIFA  

World Cup

complete, according to schedule according to schedule
60% complete 100%

Report Research document 1 0

Football development 

programmes implemented programmes implemented
2 2

Clinics held
clinics held

10 10

specialised clinics
200 357

in the football development 

programme

20 10

Coaches trained Females

Males

10

50

4

17
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2010 FIFA  

World Cup

500 500

the community

12 27

90 102

2010 World event promoted attended by Ambassadors to 

promote 2010

15 23

Ambassodors utilised
 

12 14

School programmes implemented 

by Ambassodors implemented by Ambassadors 
20 21

available for distribution

Develop guideline for brand 

usage
1 0

Contract managed in accordance Financial support for stadium 

construction
100% 100%

Football legends and sports 

heroes identified legends and sports heroes
20 19

Educational and profiling events 

organised and supported that 

promote national symbols

17

Cultural programmes provided at 

football events presented at football events
6 6

Capacity building provided in 
6 6

Ebaleni programme
4 4

Ebaleni District forums Ebaleni District Forums

1 1
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SPORT
EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Number of people recognised 

Number of new facilities constructed
 

 the Municipality.
Number of facilities upgraded

 
 municipality.

Number of national and international events
 
 

Number of employees reached

Number of athletes, administrators, technical officials and coaches supported through high performance programmes

Number of athletes, administrators, technical officials and coaches to attend international events

Number of administrators and volunteers trained

Number of coaches trained

Number of technical officials trained
 

Number of athletes benefitting from sport development activities
 
 
 

RECREATION
EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Number of recreation structures supported

Number of recreational sport events/ programmes

Number of participants in recreational sport events and programmes

Number of talented athletes taken up in the Club Development Programme (CDP)

SCHOOL SPORT
EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Number of learners participating

Number of talented athletes taken up in high performance structures and programmes
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 by SRSA.
Number of (LSEN) learners participating

 
 disability disciplines.

Number of (LSEN) educators trained

Number of Grade-R / Foundation Phase Festivals
 

Number of Foundation Phase educators trained
 

Number of learners admitted to the Western Cape Sport School

2010 FIFA WORLD CUP
EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Philippi stadium upgrade according to schedule

Research document

Number of youths trained at specialised clinics
 

Number of football clubs twinned in the football development programme
 

Number of coaches trained (Females and males)

Number of street football events used to develop football skills in the community

Number of volunteers trained

Number of community events attended by ambassadors to promote 2010

Number of coaching clinics in communities utilising ambassadors

Develop guidelines for brand usage

Number of areas visited through road shows
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CONDITIONAL GRANT

MASS SPORT AND RECREATION PARTICIPATION PROGRAMME

Legacy:

EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Number of sport clubs established and/or maintained

Number of basic sport and recreation administration courses presented
 

 and SRSA.
Number of sport code coaching courses presented

Grant outputs Performance indicator

Actual Performance against 
Target

Target Actual

programme
or maintained

150 154

courses administration courses presented
6 4

Sport specific coaching courses for 
identified clubs presented

16 7

technical officials

Technical officials responsible for ensuring 
correct interpretation of rules and 
regulations peculiar to affected priority 

16

club development programme

Athletes participating in club 
development programmes and activities 2 000

code structures and other relevant 
that contribute and assist in the 
implementation of the club development 
programme

10 14

to clubs clubs
125 74

Club Development Administrator and 

programme 
Coordinator appointed to administer the 
programme

2 5

Identification and allocation of Federation 
appointed by federation

0
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Technical officials responsible for ensuring correct interpretation of rules and regulations peculiar to affected 
 priority codes in identified priority codes’ clubs

 
 participate in the training sessions.

Athletes participating in club development programmes and activities on a weekly basis

Provincial federations and municipalities that contribute and assist in the implementation of the club development programme
 

Administrator and programme coordinator appointed to administer the programme

Federation liaison person for the club development programme appointed by federations 

SIYADLALA MASS PARTICIPATION PROGRAMME

 

 

 
 

 

Grant outputs Performance indicator

Actual Performance against 
Target

Target Actual

and Activity Coordinators

Farms
clothing has been procured

35 35

14

0

7

0

12 

technical officiating and event 
management, farms development 

different courses
200 404

35

14

35

12

Appointment of Activity and Hub 
Coordinators

Appoint farm Coordinators 7

4

1

6

1
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Farm development programme 200

246

214

200

154
            

74

202

Total participation in activities

Farm development programme 20 000 13910

33

management management
197

139

35

EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Number of hub and activity coordinators for whom equipment and clothing has been procured (Farms)
 

Farm worker development (Number of programmes initiated)

Number of coordinators trained in different courses

Appoint farm coordinators
 Financial constraints dictated that only seven out of the eight could be appointed.

Number of provincial events hosted

Number of Coaches trained

Number of Coaches trained (Farm development programme)

Present training course in Administration (Number of Administrators trained)

Present training course in Administration (Farm Development Programme)

Number of Referees trained
 

Number of people participating
 

 cancellation of some events
Number of people trained in First Aid

 Eventual costs involved in hosting the course made it impossible to accommodate the intended amount of people.
Number of people trained in events management

Number of people trained in life skills
 The mass participation coordinators could not attend all the events

Number of recreational clubs created
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SCHOOL SPORT MASS PARTICIPATION PROGRAMME

 

 

 

EXPLANATION FOR OVER OR UNDER PERFORMANCE

Number of sport assistants for whom equipment and clothing has been procured
 
 

Number of schools in 15 clusters
 The realignment of school sport programmes and the placement of school sport officials at the district offices of the WCED  

 
 

Number of informed sport assistants placed in respective schools
 

Grant outputs Performance indicator

Baseline

Actual 
Performance 

against Target

Actual 
Performance 

against Target

Assistants at their respective schools
300 321

Register participating schools 260

20 20

Induction programme and placement of 
Sport Assistants placed in respective schools

300 321

Host coaching courses 300 321

Host technical officiating courses Educators trained as technical officials in 
at least 6 identified codes of sport

300

Host event management courses
event management 0 0

5 5

training team and utilise for ongoing 
monitoring and evaluation

1 vehicle purchased 1 4

Host interschool competitions 20 14

Host intraschool competitions 1200 2404
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Number of sport assistants competent as level 1 coaches in at least 6 codes of sport
 

Number of sport assistants and educators trained as technical officials in at least 6 identified codes of sport
 
 
 
 

 athletic season.
1 vehicle purchased 

 
 The need for more resources for the purposes of effective and efficient service delivery became evident and therefore the  

Number of clusters hosting quarterly festivals

Number of intra-school activities per quarter
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TRANSFER PAYMENTS

Sub-programme Name of Institution Amount Transferred

Sport

Boland Federations

30 000

17 000

10 000

21 000

20 000

25 000

12 000

10 000

20 000

10 000

40 000

27 000

20 000

20 000

32 000

12 000

32 000

10 000

20 000

30 000

SWD Federations

South Africa Sailing: South Cape 2 000

11 000

South Cape Cycling 20 000

23 000

13 000

13 000

10 000

SWD Karate 35 500
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10 000

10 000

20 000

27 500

SWD Rugby 20 000

SAFA Eden 30 000

WP and Western Cape Federations

30 000

Fedansa Western Cape 45 000

30 000

South Africa Sailing: Western Cape 20 000

45 000

12 000

25 000

17 000

27 000

20 000

17 500

20 000

12 600

10 000

5 000

5 000

21 000

37 000

25 000

20 000

20 000

15 000

30 000

10 000

40 000
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15 000

29 000

23 000

West Coast Federations

SAF West Coast 25 000

20 000

Dissability Sport

37 000

14 300

DISWEC 15 000

SWD Disabled 35 000

WC Deaf 25 000

Western Cape Sports Assoc.: II 45 000

Western Cape Sports Assoc.: II 50 000

West Coast II 12 000

45 000

Development Ad-hoc Funding

15 000

25 000

5 000

15 000

150 000

WC Fencing 12 000

4 000

15 000

25 000

40 000

5 000

WC Sport Council 23 000

SWD Sport Council 20 000

10 000

25 000

20 000

100 000

125 000
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25 000

10 000

15 000

110 000

15 000

70 000

25 000

SWD Sport Council 10 000

West Coast Sport Council 5 000

45 000

55 000

30 000

WECSA 250 000

25 000

Transformation 

SWD Federations

SWD Sport Council 15 000

SWD Standing Committee 17 000

17 213

SWD Drummies

SWD SA Sailing 19 672

Boland Federations

19 672

Western Province Federations

10 000

19 672

24 590

19 672

WC Sport Council 15 000
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WC Deaf 25 000

100 000

50 000

Municipalities (facilities)

1500 000

650 000

300 000

1 000 000

250 000

School
300 000

Major Events

133 000

34 000

25 000

14 000

30 000

20 000

15 000

20 000

20 000

Western Cape Sports Association 100 000

SWD Sport for the Disabled

SWD Sport for the Disabled 30 000

SWDDMA 25 000

15 000

10 000

5 000

25 000

20 000

32 000

30 000

10 000

20 000

20 000

20 000
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Sport

10 000

35 000

Western Cape Fedansa 20 000

5 000

200 000

15 000

SA Sailing 25 000

SA Sailing 25 000

24 590

40 000

SWD Sport for the Disabled

50 000

20 000

SUB TOTAL 8 710 316

School Sport

Facilities

50 000

20 000

20 000

Masibambisane High School 305 000

300 000

300 000

200 000

327 000

327 000

School Sport Programmes

71 030

62 000

Khayelitsha School Sport Cluster 5 000

Western Cape School Athletics 5 200

WC School Sport Table Tennis

70 000

Western Cape Elsen Athletics



School Sport

WC Athletics 152 000

12 424

125 000

Western Cape Athletics 9 472

WC School Softball 19 622

15 994

WC Wheelchair

200 000

High Performance Support

Western Cape Sport School 3 200 000

Western Cape Sport School 279 603

Western Cape Sport Academy

SUB TOTAL 7 133 163

2010 FIFA World Cup
Upgrading of Green Point Stadium

212 000 000

SUB TOTAL 212 000 000

Households 3 243

TOTAL 227 846 722
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PART 3 :  
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PART 3 : REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
In terms of Cabinet Resolution 55/2007, the Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport is served by the Social Cluster Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE
The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at minimum 4 times per annum as per its 
approved terms of reference. During the year under review 8 meetings were held.

Name      Meetings Attended
Mr W J Sewell (Chairperson)     8
Mr Z Hoosain      5
Mr J Jarvis       8
Ms A Jones      8
Adv M Mdludlu      8
Apologies were tendered and accepted for meetings not attended.  Quorums were present at all meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury  
Regulation 3.1.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has 
regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged its responsibilities as contained therein.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
In 2004 the Sihluma Sonke Consortium was appointed to develop and transfer internal audit skills to the internal audit staff of 
the Provincial Government. The Consortium contract expired on 14 December 2008.

Significant progress was made during the financial year under review to capacitate the shared internal audit function within 
Provincial Treasury.  The transition from a co-sourced internal audit function to an in-house internal audit function, in our as-
sessment, was completed and successful.

In line with the PFMA and the King II Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit seeks to provide the Audit 
Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective.  This is achieved by 
the execution of a risk-based internal audit coverage plan for the period under review, as well as ongoing review of correc-
tive actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.  Significant improvement relating to management 
monitoring, control and coherence was noted as well as a commendable reduction in the staff vacancy rate.  Both the Internal 
Auditors and the Auditor-General reported some instances of non-compliance with prescribed policies and procedures. On 
our evaluation this was not indicative of major weaknesses in the control environment, except for the system and processes 
around performance information.  In addition, significant weaknesses relating to health and safety and lack of maintenance of 
premises were reported in the Directorate of Library and Archive Services where the underlying causes are related to the fact 
that the Archives buildings have not been transferred to the Provincial Department of Transport and Public Works.  This risk 
will remain until the transfer is effected.

We concur with Internal Audit and the Auditor-General’s recommendations as tabled in the various reports and management 
has agreed to implement corrective actions.  The Audit Committee will monitor progress and will continuously review the 
Internal Audit plan to take account of the mission, strategy, governance and performance priorities of the Department.  
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The Department has made some progress in respect of Enterprise Risk Management, towards the required standards of man-
agement accountability.  The Social Cluster Audit Committee is monitoring progress on a quarterly basis.

The Committee has previously reported on the growing crisis of Information and Communication Technology (ICT) within the 
Provincial Government.  The Chief Information Officer of the Province presented the Provincial Shared Audit Committee with 
a turn-around strategy to address the ICT-related risks facing the Province, and is closely monitoring the situation.  The Audit 
Committee notes with concern the slow progress in implementing corrective action.  Until the ICT turn-around strategy has 
been fully implemented, the risks facing the department will not be mitigated to an acceptable level.

THE QUALITY OF IN-YEAR-MANAGEMENT AND QUARTERLY REPORTS SUBMITTED IN TERMS OF THE PFMA
The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly In Year Monitoring and Quarterly Performance 
Reports prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer of the Department during the year under review; and will continue to 
encourage management to develop and monitor meaningful measurable objectives.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed:

 
 Officer; and

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial statements, and is of the 
opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

APPRECIATION
The Audit Committee wishes to express its appreciation to the Officials of the Department, Provincial Treasury, the Auditor-General  
and the Internal Audit Unit for the co-operation and information they have provided to enable us to compile this report.

MR. W.J. SEWELL
CHAIRPERSON OF THE SOCIAL CLUSTER AUDIT COMMITTEE
DATE:  17 AUGUST 2009
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PART 4 : ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WESTERN CAPE: DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS AND SPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

4.1 Report of the Accounting Officer
REPORT BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY AND PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE OF THE 
REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA. 

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

1.1 POLICY DECISIONS AND STRATEGIC ISSUES

Important policy decisions and strategic issues facing the department

A major policy development area for the Department was the development of a new vision and the strategic positioning of our 
work and APP into five main areas : talent identification and excellence, mass participation, partnerships, skills development 
and policy. This has resulted in an integration of effort across the Department. 

Important spending decisions affecting the Department for the period under review were as follows:

 

 infrastructure costs.

 ultimately acted upon.  

1.2 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

events of the Department and are regarded as significant in terms of the delivery of services:

 Heritage site 
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1.3 MAJOR PROJECTS

towards events such as: 

In addition the Department engaged in the following major projects:

 

 at regional, district and circuit levels

1.4 SPENDING TRENDS

huge staff turnover that the Department experienced during the year in addition to the delayed filling of the vacant posts due 

The Department received revenue mainly from the following sources:
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2. Service rendered by the department

2.1 TARIFF POLICY

All tariffs are reflected in a tariff register which are revised annually.

2.2 FREE SERVICES

The Department does not offer any free services.

2.3 INVENTORIES

The inventories are reflected as a note in the annual financial statements.

3. Capacity constraints

the Department has great difficulty in finding capital funds to avail to municipalities and affiliated museums to undertake the 
urgent repairs that are needed to safeguard our museum collections.  

resources to meet these requirements.

municipalities and therefore continue to lose personnel to this sector. 

financial incentives for the staff to remain with the department. 

4. Utilisation of donor funds

5. Public entities

5.1 WESTERN CAPE CULTURAL COMMISSION (WCCC)
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5.2 WESTERN CAPE LANGUAGE COMMITTEE (WCLC)

 

ects and programmes were carried out during the year.

5.3 HERITAGE WESTERN CAPE (HWC)

6. Organisations to whom transfer payments have   
 been made 

7. Public private partnerships (PPP)

8. Corporate governance arrangements

the internal audit plan for the current financial year.

9. Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued
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10. New/proposed activities
10.1
vincial cultural matters, archives other than national archives and museums other than national museums received continued 

11. Asset management 

regard to procurement and provisioning of assets. 

12. Events after the reporting date

aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year, not otherwise dealt with in the annual financial state
ments, which significantly affects the financial position of the Department or results of its operations.
.

13. Performance information

14. SCOPA resolutions

15. Other

GOVERNANCE

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

ing of findings document in assessing the department's remedial actions.

There are no other material facts or circumstances, which may have an effect on the understanding of, the financial state of 
affairs, not addressed in this report. 
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APPROVAL

MR. BC WALTERS
ACT ACCOUNTING OFFICER
31 MAY 2009
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4.2 REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
(AS PER THE ACTUAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL'S REPORT PROVIDED BY THE OFFICE OF THE AUDI-
TOR GENERAL)

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE WESTERN CAPE PROVINCIAL PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATE-
MENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF VOTE NO. 13: DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS AND SPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction

 
 

 the statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant  

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements
 
 
 
 

 the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Auditor-General’s responsibility
 
 

 
 
 

 material misstatement.
 
 

 misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor  
 
 
 
 

 of the financial statements.

 
Opinion 

 
 

Basis of accounting 
 

Other matters

Non-compliance with applicable legislation
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Governance framework

 

Key governance responsibilities
 
 

 as follows:

No. Matter Y N

Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely manner

1.
of requested information.

�

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2. �

3. �

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4. �

Availability of key officials during audit 

5. �

Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and governance practices

6. Audit committee

The department had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year. �

The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference. �

�

7. Internal audit

The department had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year. �

The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. �

�

8.
There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in 
respect of financial and risk management.

�

9.
There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in 

�

10.
The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial 
statements.

�

11. �
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were highlighted in the final management report of the department. Those deficiencies are indicative of a situation where 

lack of compliance with defined control activities.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Report on performance information

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the performance information
 

The Auditor-General’s responsibility
 

 
 

Finding on performance information
Non-compliance with regulatory requirements

 
 
 

 
APPRECIATION

No. Matter Y N

12. �

Follow-up of audit findings

13. �

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

14.
The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report 
that is accurate and complete.

�

15.
Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the 
accuracy and completeness of reported performance information.

�

16.

A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of 

�

17. �
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4.3 APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
Appropriation per programme

2008/09 2007/08

Adjusted  

Appropriation

 

Appropriation

Actual 
 

as % of final 

appropriation

 

Appropriation

 Actual 

%

1. Administration

 Payment for capital assets

2. Cultural Affairs

 Payment for capital assets

3. Library and Information  

 Services 

     Payments for capital assets

4. Sport and Recreation

     Payments for capital assets       

 Subtotal 502,203 - - 502,203 499,970 2,233 99.6% 225,209 223,138

 Statutory Appropriation

 Payment for capital assets

 TOTAL 502,203 - - 502,203 499,970 2,233 99.6% 225,209 223,138

 Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance

     Add:

 Prior year unauthorised expenditure approved with funding

 Departmental revenue

 Direct exchequer receipts

 Actual amounts per Statements of Financial Performance (Total revenue) 503,416 226,060

     Add:

 Direct exchequer payments

 Prior year unauthorised expenditure approved

 Prior year fruitless and wasteful expenditure approved

 Actual amounts per Statements of Financial Performance (Total expenditure) 499,970 223,138
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Appropriation per economic classification

2008/09 2007/08

                                                      
Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting of 

Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments

employees

Interest and rent on land

Provinces and 

municipalities

Departmental agencies and 

accounts

international organisations 

private enterprises

Households 

Payments for capital assets

structures

Total 502,203 - - 502,203 499,970 2,233 99.6% 225,209 223,138
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DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 1 - ADMINISTRATION

2008/09 2007/08

Programme per sub programme
Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting of 

Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

1.1 Office of the Provincial Minister of Cultural Affairs, Sport and Recreation

  Payment for capital assets

1.2  Corporate Services

   Payment for capital assets

1.3  Management

       Payment for capital assets

TOTAL 32,386 190 847 33,423 33,386 37 99.9% 31,311 31,281

2008/09 2007/08

Economic Classification
Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting of 

Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

 Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments

 

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and 

accounts

Households

Payments for capital assets

assets

TOTAL 32,386 190 847 33,423 33,386 37 99.9% 31,311 31,281
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DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 2 – CULTURAL AFFAIRS

2008/09 2007/08

Programme per sub programme
Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting 

of Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

2.1  Management

    Payment for capital assets

2.2  Arts and Culture

  Payment for capital assets

2.3 Museum  and Heritage Resource Services

   Payment for capital assets

2.4 Language Services

   Payment for capital assets

TOTAL 57,849 - (1,490) 56,359 56,265 94 99.8% 49,385 49,325

2008/09 2007/08

Economic Classification
Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting  

of Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

 Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and 

accounts

Households

Payments for capital assets

assets

TOTAL 57,849 - (1,490) 56,359 56,265 94 99.8% 49,385 49,325



96

DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 3 – LIBRARY AND INFORMATION SERVICES

2008/09 2007/08

Programme per sub pro-

gramme

Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting  

of Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

3.1  Management

       Payment for capital assets

3.2  Library Services

     Payment for capital assets

3.3  Archive Services

      Payment for capital assets

TOTAL 104,710 - 489 105,199 105,048 151 99.9% 86,097 85,489

2008/09 2007/08

Economic Classification

Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting  

of Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and 

accounts

Households

Payments for capital assets

Building and other fixtures

assets

TOTAL 104,710 - 489 105,199 105,048 151 99.9% 86,097 85,489
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DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 4 – SPORT AND RECREATION

2008/09 2007/08

Programme per sub programme
Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting  

of Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

4.1  Management

      Payment for capital assets

4.2  Community and Senior Sport

      Payment for capital assets

4.3  Community Recreation        

      Payment for capital assets

4.4  School Sport

     Payment for capital assets

4.5  2010 World Cup

      Payment for capital assets

TOTAL 307,258 (190) 154 307,222 305,271 1,951 99.4% 58,416 57,043
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DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 4 – SPORT AND RECREATION

2008/09 2007/08

Economic Classification

Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting  

of Funds
Virement

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 

as % of final 

appropriation

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

 Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and 

accounts

Households

Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other fixtures

assets 

TOTAL 307,258 (190) 154 307,222 305.271 1,951 99.4% 58,416 57,043
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4.4 NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
1. DETAIL OF TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES AS PER APPROPRIATION ACT (AFTER VIREMENT):

2. DETAIL OF SPECIFICALLY AND EXCLUSIVELY APPROPRIATED AMOUNTS VOTED (AFTER VIREMENT):

3. DETAIL ON FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

4. EXPLANATIONS OF MATERIAL VARIANCES FROM AMOUNTS VOTED (AFTER VIREMENT):

Programme 3 – Libraries and Archives Services

Programme 4 – Sport and Recreation

4.1  Per Programme

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance  
Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000

      Administration

4.2 Per Economic classification

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance
Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payment:

Transfers and subsidies:

Provinces and municipalities

Departmental agencies and accounts

Households

Payments for capital assets
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4.5 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation

Departmental revenue

TOTAL REVENUE 503,416 226,060

EXPENDITURE

Total current expenditure 227,049 179,135

Transfers and subsidies 6 268,630 42,256

Expenditure for capital assets

Total expenditure for capital assets 4,291 1,747

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 499,970 223,138

SURPLUS

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 3,446 2,922

Reconciliation of Surplus for the year

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 3,446 2,922
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4.6 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

ASSETS

Current assets

 Prepayments and advances

  

TOTAL ASSETS 5,333 8,049

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,330 8,047

NET ASSETS 3 2

Represented by:

   Recoverable revenue

3 2
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4.7 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

4.8 CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Recoverable revenue

Transfers

Closing balance 3 2

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Annual appropriated funds received

Departmental revenue received

Net cash flow available from operating activities 15 5,155 301

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

   Payments for capital assets

Net cash flows from investing activities (4,291) (1,747)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   Increase in net assets

Net cash flows from financing activities 1 2

   Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 16 2,214 1,349
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4.9 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has 

1. PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

1.2 PRESENTATION CURRENCY

1.3 ROUNDING

1.4 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

1.5 COMPARATIVE FIGURES - APPROPRIATION STATEMENT

propriation statement.  

2. REVENUE

2.1 APPROPRIATED FUNDS

Total appropriated funds are presented in the statement of financial performance.  

2.2 DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE
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2.3.1 SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ASSETS

Performance when the cash is received.  

2.3.2 FINES, PENALTIES & FORFEITS

Performance when the cash is received.  

3. EXPENDITURE

3.1 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

3.1.1 SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

All other payments are classified as current expense.

3.1.2 POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

and not in the financial statements of the employer department.

3.1.3 TERMINATION BENEFITS

3.1.4 OTHER LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

3.2 GOODS AND SERVICES
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3.3 FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

3.4 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

3.5 TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

3.6 EXPENDITURE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS

4. ASSETS

4.1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

4.2 PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial position when the payments are made.

4.3 RECEIVABLES

4.4 INVENTORY

Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the notes.

4.5 CAPITAL ASSETS
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5. LIABILITIES

5.1 VOTED FUNDS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

5.2 DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

position at cost.

5.3 PAYABLES

historical cost in the statement of financial position.  

5.4 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

5.5 COMMITMENTS

5.6 ACCRUALS

5.7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

to the financial statements.  These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial performance or the statement of 
financial position.

5.8 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating leases

mitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements. 

6. NET ASSETS

6.1 CAPITALISATION RESERVE

recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period.  Amounts are transferred to 
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6.2 RECOVERABLE REVENUE

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

8. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

sure notes. 
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4.10 NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

1.1   ANNUAL APPROPRIATION

Departments :**

1.2 CONDITIONAL GRANTS **

2. DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

Final 
Appropriation

Actual Funds 
Received

Funds not 
requested/not 

received

Appropriation
received 2007/08

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration

Total 502,203 502,203 - 225,209

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Total grants received

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Description  

Total revenue collected

Total 1,213 851
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

2.1 SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES OTHER THAN CAPITAL ASSETS

2.2 FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NATURE OF RECOVERY

2.3 FINES, PENALTIES AND FORFEITS

3. COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

3.1 SALARIES AND WAGES

Total 230 80

Total 170 451

Penalties

Total 1,358 785

Performance award

Periodic payment

Total 87,304 75,948
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

3.2 SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Note:

4. GOODS AND SERVICES

3.2.1 Employer contributions

Pension

Total 12,802 11,354

Total compensation of employees 100,106 87,302

Advertising

Administrative fees

Inventory

Training and staff development

Transport provided as part of the departmental activities

Total 126,888 91,544
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

4.1 EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES

4.2     INVENTORY

4.3     TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE

4.4    ASSETS LESS THAN R5,000

Total 1,781 1,428

Parts and other maintenance material

Total 40,020 37,918

Total 10,558 9,674

Tangible asset

Intangible asset

Total 1,713 845
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

4.5    CONSULTANT, CONTRACTORS AND AGENCY/OUTSOURCED SERVICES

4.6     COMPUTER SERVICES

4.7    OWNED AND LEASEHOLD PROPERTY EXPENDITURE

4.8    OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

Total 38,496 8,303

Total 4,741 3,938

Total 1,339 1,171

Total 2,875 3,254
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

5.1 OTHER MATERIAL LOSSES WRITTEN OFF

5.2 DEBTS WRITTEN OFF

5. FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total 55 289

Nature of losses

rd

rd

 liquidated

  Total 15 223

Nature of debts written off

  Total 30 29
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

5.3 THEFT WRITTEN OFF

5.4     IRRECOVERABLE AMOUNTS WRITTEN OFF

6 TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

Nature of theft

  Total 10 37

Receivables written off

  Total 2 11

Provinces and municipalities   

Departmental agencies and accounts

Households

Total 268,630 42,256
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

7. EXPENDITURE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

9. PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

Total 4,291 1,747

7.1 Analysis of funds
Utilised to acquire capital assets – 2008/09

Voted Funds 
R,000

Aid assistance  
R’000

Total 
R’000

Total 4,291 - 4,291

7.2 Analysis of funds
Utilised to acquire capital assets – 2007/08

Voted Funds 
R,000

Aid assis-
tance R’000

Total 
R’000

Total 1,747 - 1,747

Total 4,768 7,212

Total 106 56
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

10. RECEIVABLES

10.1 STAFF DEBTORS

10.2 CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

10. 3 RECOVERABLE EXPENDITURE(DISALLOWANCE ACCOUNTS)

Note
Less than 
one year

R’000

One to 
three years

R’000

Older than 
three years

R’000

2008/09
Total

R’000

2007/08
Total

R’000

Total 310 97 52 459 781

Total 345 139

Provincial departments

           

Total 30 512

Total 84 130
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

11. VOTED FUNDS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

12. DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

13. PAYABLES - CURRENT

13.1 CLEARING ACCOUNTS

Opening balance 2,071 2,465

Paid during the year

Closing balance 2,703 2,071

Opening balance 33 580

Paid during the year

Closing balance 11 33

 Total 62 80

Description

 Total 62 80
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

14. BANK OVERDRAFT

15. NET CASH FLOW AVAILABLE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

16. RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Total 2,554 5,863

Net cash flow generated by operating activities 5,155 301

Total 2,214 1,349

Liable to    Nature

Total 285 170

 

4.11 DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL  
  STATEMENTS
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

18. COMMITMENTS

19.     ACCRUAL

20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Current expenditure

Approved and contracted

Total Commitments 2,356 3,026

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Total 2,687 1,146 3,833 1,353

 Administration

 Total 3,833 1,353

702 1,036

Thirteenth cheque

Performance awards

Total 11,827 10,379
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Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

21. LEASE COMMITMENTS

21.1  OPERATING LEASES

22. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

22.1   RECONCILIATION OF IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

22.2  IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2008/2009 Land
Buildings and 

other fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment
Total

Total present value of lease liabilities - - 759 759

2007/2008 Land
Buildings and 

other fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment
Total

Total present value of lease liabilities - - 621 621

Incident
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings
2008/09 2007/08

component for disciplinary actions

197 324

Add: Irregular expenditure – current year

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement 4 -
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No. of 
Individuals

2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

24. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

25.     LIBRARY BOOKS

Total 4,622 3,103

Note 2008/09 2007/08

R’000 R’000

25.1  Purchase

25.2

      Total 1,132 955

Note:

26.  TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2009

Opening 
balance

Current Year 
Adjustments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals
Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 9,506 (45) 4,291 (828) 12,924

Transport assets

TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS 9,506 (45) 4,291 (828) 12,924
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26.1 

ADDITIONS TO TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2009

Cash Non-cash

(Capital Work in 

Progress current 

costs)

Received 

current, not paid 

(Paid current 

year, received  

prior year)

Total

Cost Fair Value Cost Cost Cost

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 4,291 - - - 4,563

Transport assets

TOTAL 4,291 - - - 4,291

26.2

DISPOSAL OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2009

Sold (cash) Cost
Non-cash  
Fair Value

Total Cost
Cash Received 

Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT - 828 828 -

Transport assets

TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS - 828 828 -

26.3

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2008

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 8,172 1,747 (413) 9,506

Transport assets

TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS 8,172 1,747 (413) 9,506
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27.    MINOR ASSETS

28.    INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

28.1

28.2

MINOR ASSETS OF THE DEPARTMENT FOR 31 MARCH 2009

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

TOTAL 660 - 22,013 22,673

TOTAL - - 162,623 - 162,623

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2009

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals
Closing 
balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS 163 - - 163

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2008

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals
Closing 
balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS 163 - - 163

4.12 ANNEXURES
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PART 5: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
HR OVERSIGHT - APRIL 2008 TO MARCH 2009 - WESTERN CAPE - CULTURAL AFFAIRS AND SPORT

TABLE 5.1.1 - MAIN SERVICE FOR SERVICE DELIVERY IMPROVEMENT AND STANDARDS

5.1 SERVICE DELIVERY 

Main Services Actual Customers Potential Customers Standard of Service
Actual Achievement 

against Standards

Sport and recreation 

management and 

Administration sup-

port services

DSR personnel,  

Regional offices and 

Sport Associations.

Provincial government 

departments, private 

sector and media. 

Extention of sport and rec-

reaton people development 

and management, and ad-

ministration support services 

to volunteer structures of 

civil society.

Establishment of Western 

Cape Sport Forum, and 3 

Regional sport Councils as 

strategic partners to Head 

Office, and Regional Offices, 

respectively.

Sport and Recreation 

development

Sport Associations, 

administrators, ath-

letes, coaches and 

technical officials.

Public and Private 

sector employees 

and communities.

Provision of financial assis-

tance to sport associations. 

Promotion and sustainable 

development of sport and 

recreation.

Transfer payments amount-

ing to 22% of allocated bud-

get as financial assistance to 

sport federations for devel-

opment of sport and recre-

ation and ad-hoc funding for 

national and international 

participation in competitions 

of accredited standards.

Major Events, Fa-

cilities provisioning, 

Marketing and Com-

munication.

Sports associations, 

local authorities, ma-

jor event companies, 

and media.

Sponsors and  

communities.

Provision of financial assis-

tance to sport associations 

for staging and hosting of 

major events, facilities provi-

sioning and marketing.

Funding for major events 

used to support  8 interna-

tional events,  45 regional 

events and 20 facilities proj-

ects were undertaken.

Sport and Recreation 

development

Sport Associations, 

administrators, ath-

letes, coaches and 

technical officials.

Public and Private 

sector employees 

and communities.

Provision of financial assis-

tance to sport associations. 

Promotion and sustainable 

development of sport and 

recreation.

Transfer payments amount-

ing to 22% of allocated bud-

get as financial assistance to 

sport federations for devel-

opment of sport and recre-

ation and ad-hoc funding for 

national and international 

participation in competitions 

of accredited standards.

Promotion of phisi-

cally active lifestyles, 

and HIV/AIDS educa-

tion and awareness 

campaign.

Sport assciations, and 

communities

Clubs and individual 

paticipants and civil-

lians

Promotion of physically 

active lifestyles, HIV/AIDS 

education and awareness 

campaign.

A total of 81 international, 

national and regional events 

used as a platform for the 

promotion of physically ac-

tive lifestyles and HIV/AIDS 

education and awareness 

campaign and 5 dedicated 

HIV/AIDS related events held 

over financial year period.
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TABLE 5.1.2 - CONSULTATION ARRANGEMENTS FOR CUSTOMERS

TABLE 5.1.3 - SERVICE DELIVERY ACCESS STRATEGY

Type of Arrangement Actual Customer Potential Customer Actual Achievements

Policy and directive consulta-

tion with and through Western 

Cape Sport Forum and 3  

Regional Offices

Western Cape Sport Forum, 3 

Regional Sport Council and 4 

Regional Offices.

Provincial government depart-

ments, private sector and media.

Ongoing consultation with 

Western Cape Sport Forum and 

the 3 Regional Offices.

Application forms and selection 

criteria to secure annual grants for 

development and participation in 

national and international compe-

tition of accredited standards as 

provided for by funding policy.

All provincial sport federations 

and macro structures.

Public and private sector  

employees, and communities.

Transfer payments and ad-hoc 

funding amounting to 22% of 

sub-programme budget disburse-

ment towards development of 

sport and recreation and partici-

pation in national and interna-

tional events of accredited status.

Application forms and selec-

tion criteria as provided for in 

the major events strategy and 

Western Cape facilities plan

All local authorities, provincial 

federations, companies and 

media. 

Sponsors and communities.

Allocation of major events fund-

ing for eight(08) international 

events 27 national events, and 

20 facilities projects undertaken 

in local communities.

Linkage of promotion and aware-

ness campaigns to major events 

and annual programmes under-

taken by 4  Regional offices.

All sport federations and  

communities.

Clubs and individual  

participants and civilians,

Promotional and awareness 

campaigning material distribu-

tion undertaken through the 

media of 81 international, 

national, regional major events 

and 5 HIV/AIDS events.

Access Strategy Actual Achievements

Western Cape Sport Forum, 3 Regional Sport Councils and 4 DSR 

Regional Offices serve the role of structured access to DSR.

Ongoing consultation with Western Cape Sport Forum and 3 Re-

gional Offices.

Provincial Sport Federations and macro-structures serve as access for 

clubs and associations’ access to sport and recreation service delivery, 

through DSR Regional Offices.

Transfer payments and ad-hoc funding amounting to 22% of sub-

programme budget disbursement towards development of sport 

and recreation as well as the participation in national and interna-

tional events of accredited status.

Sport federations, sport clubs, major events companies’ access HIV/

AIDS education and awareness promotional material through DSR 

Regional Offices.

Promotional and awareness campaign material distribution un-

dertakeing through the medium of 81 international, national and 

regional major events and the 5 dedicated HIV/AIDS events as 

facilitated through macro-structures and DSR Regional Offices.
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TABLE 5.1.4 - SERVICE INFORMATION TOOL

TABLE 5.1.5 - COMPLAINT MECHANISM

Type of Information Tool Actual Achievements

Policies and cooperative agreements with macro- structures and 

sport associations accessed via DSR Regional Offices

Establishment of Western Cape Sport Forum and 3 Regional Sport 

Councils as strategic partners to Head Office and Regional Offices, 

respectively.

Application forms with pertinent funding policy selectiion and 

eligibility criteria accessed via DSR Regional Offices.

Transfer payments amounting to 22% of allocated budget as 

financial assistance to sport federations for development of sport 

and recreation and ad-hoc funding for national, international 

participation in competitions of accredited status.

Application forms with pertinent major events and facilities plan 

selection and eligibility criteria accessed via DSR Regional Offices.

Funding for major events used to support 8 international events, 

27 national events, 45 regional events and 20 facilities projects 

were undertaken.

Marketing, communications and media.

A total of  81 international, national and regional events used as 

platform for the promotion of physically active lifestyles and HIV/

AIDS related events held for the financial year period.

Complaint Mechanism Actual Achievements

Management policy related correspondence and meetings 

involving Head Office and 4 DSR Regional Offices.

Ongoing correspondence, consultation and meetings with Western 

Cape Sport Forum, 3 Regional Sport Councils, 3 Regional Sport 

Councils and the 4 DSR Regional Offices.

Funding related correspondence and meetings through macro-

structures and direct interaction initiated through ministry and 

Head of Department’s office.

Ongoing correspondence and meetings with local authorities, 

provincial sport associations, major events companies and media.

Marketing and Communication related correspondence and 

meetings initiated through Ministry (in conjunction with Health 

Ministry) and Head of Department’s Office.

Sport Health specific database not available as yet.
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TABLE 5.2.1 - PERSONNEL COSTS BY PROGRAMME

TABLE 5.2.2 - PERSONNEL COSTS BY SALARY BAND

Programme

Total Voted 

Expenditure 

(R’000)

Compensation 

of Employees 

Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training  

Expenditure 

(R’000)

Professional 

and Special 

Services 

(R’000)

Compensation 

of Employees 

as percent  

of Total  

Expenditure

Average Com-

pensation of 

Employees Cost 

per Employee 

(R’000)

Employment

Pr1: administration 27,460 16,124 785 0 58.7 126 128

Pr2: cultural affairs 47,604 26,642 367 0 56.0 95 280

Pr3: library and informations 63,220 20,837 92 0 33.0 96 218

Pr4: sport & recreation 46,882 12,804 461 0 27.3 22 579

Sassa 0 0 0 0 0.0 0 0

Theft and losses 147 0 0 0 0.0 0 0

Z=Total as on Financial 

Systems (BAS) 
185,313 76,407 1,707 0 41.2 63 1205

Salary Bands

Compensation of 

Employees Cost 

(R’000)

Percentage of Total 

Personnel Cost for 

Department

Average  

Compensation Cost 

per Employee (R)

Total Personnel Cost 

for Department in-

cluding Goods and 

Transfers (R’000)

Number of  

Employees

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 7,132 9.4 51,684 75,869 138

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 8,958 11.8 65,866 75,869 136

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 33,349 44.0 129,260 75,869 258

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 11,285 14.9 225,703 75,869 50

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 3,410 4.5 487,079 75,869 7

Contract (Levels 1-2) 383 0.5 23,962 75,869 16

Contract (Levels 3-5) 1,221 1.6 33,929 75,869 36

Contract (Levels 6-8) 1,419 1.9 64,515 75,869 22

Contract (Levels 9-12) 1,606 2.1 200,767 75,869 8

Contract (Levels 13-16) 989 1.3 494,409 75,869 2

Periodical Remuneration 140 0.2 7,758 75,869 18

Abnormal Appointment 5,537 7.3 10,772 75,869 514

TOTAL 75,429 99.4 62,597 75,869 1205

5.2 EXPENDITURE
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TABLE 5.2.3 - SALARIES, OVERTIME, HOME OWNERS ALLOWANCE AND MEDICAL AID BY PROGRAMME

TABLE 5.2.4 - SALARIES, OVERTIME, HOME OWNERS ALLOWANCE AND MEDICAL AID BY SALARY BAND

Programme
Salaries 

(R’000)

Salaries 

as % of 

Personnel 

Cost

Overtime 

(R’000)

Overtime 

as % of 

Personnel 

Cost

HOA 

(R’000)

HOA as 

% of  

Personnel 

Cost

Medical  

Ass. 

(R’000)

Medical 

Ass. as 

% of  

Personnel 

Cost

Total 

Personnel 

Cost per 

Programme 

(R’000)

Pr1 cas-administration 10,772 70.6 97 0.6 36 0.2 559 3.7 15,254

Pr2 cas-cultural affairs 19,216 71.8 344 1.3 192 0.7 1398 5.2 26,781

Pr3 cas-library&information 

services 
15,401 72.6 26 0.1 134 0.6 1266 6 21,216

Pr4 cas-sport & recreation 10,566 83.7 18 0.1 41 0.3 300 2.4 12,618

TOTAL 55,955 73.8 485 0.6 403 0.5 3523 4.6 75,869

Salary bands
Salaries 

(R’000)

Salaries 

as % of 

Personnel 

Cost

Overtime 

(R’000)

Overtime 

as % of 

Personnel  

Cost

HOA 

(R’000)

HOA as 

% of  

Personnel  

Cost

Medical  

Ass. 

(R’000)

Medical 

Ass. as 

% of 

Personnel 

Cost

Total  

Personnel  

Cost per  

Salary  

Band 

(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 5,177 72.3 126 1.8 102 1.4 419 6 7,164

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 6,325 70.5 135 1.5 69 0.8 686 8 8,966

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8) 
24,573 73.5 151 0.5 168 0.5 1879 6 33,445

Highly skilled supervision 

(Levels 9-12) 
8,214 71.2 58 0.5 57 0.5 431 4 11,531

Senior management (Levels 

13-16) 
1,987 58 0 0 7 0.2 105 3 3,428

Contract (Levels 1-2) 310 80.9 0 0 0 0 0 0 383

Contract (Levels 3-5) 927 75.8 12 1 0 0 0 0 1,223

Contract (Levels 6-8) 1,095 75.6 5 0.3 0 0 3 0 1,448

Contract (Levels 9-12) 1,160 72 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,611

Contract (Levels 13-16) 576 58 0 0 0 0 0 0 994

Periodical Remuneration 140 100.3 0 0 0 0 0 0 140

Abnormal Appointment 5,471 98.8 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,537

TOTAL 55,955 73.8 487 0.6 403 0.5 3523 5 75,869
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TABLE 5.3.1 - EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY PROGRAMME AT END OF PERIOD

TABLE 5.3.2 - EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY SALARY BAND AT END OF PERIOD

TABLE 5.3.3 - EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION AT END OF PERIOD

Programme Number of Posts
Number of  

Posts Filled
Vacancy Rate

Number of Posts 

Filled Additional to 

the Establishment

Pr1 cas-administration, Permanent 97 85 12.4 18

Pr2 cas-cultural affairs, Permanent 276 242 12.3 13

Pr3 cas-library&information services, Permanent 211 197 6.6 10

Pr4 cas-sport & recreation, Permanent 50 40 20 13

TOTAL 634 564 11 54

Salary Band Number of Posts
Number of  

Posts Filled
Vacancy Rate

Number of Posts 

Filled Additional to 

the Establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent 140 104 25.7 5

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent 139 165 -18.7 19

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), Permanent 290 237 18.3 20

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), Permanent 57 50 12.3 8

Senior management (Levels 13-16), Permanent 8 8 0 2

TOTAL 634 564 11 54

Critical Occupations Number of Posts
Number of  

Posts Filled
Vacancy Rate

Number of Posts 

Filled Additional to 

the Establishment

Cultural Officers 17 10 41.2 1

Heritage Officers 8 5 37.5 2

Librarians 32 28 12.5 1

Sport Promotion Officers 28 20 28.6 2

Archivists 20 20 0 5

Middle Management (Level 9-12) 58 50 13.8 12

Senior Management (Level 13-15) 8 8 0 2

TOTAL 171 141 17.5 25

5.3 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES
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TABLE 5.4.1 - SMS POSTS INFORMATION AS ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

TABLE 5.4.2 SMS POSTS INFORMATION AS ON 31 MARCH 2009

TABLE 5.4.3- ADVERTISING AND FILLING OF SMS POSTS AS ON 31 MARCH 2009

TABLE 5.4.4- REASONS FOR NOT HAVING COMPLIED WITH THE FILLING OF FUNDED VACANT SMS  
POSTS-ADVERTISED WITHIN 6 MONTHS AND FILLED WITHIN 12 MONTHS AFTER BECOMING VACANT 

Your attention is drawn to regulation 1/VII/C11A.3 which provides that if a department does not comply with the time frames for filling funded vacant posts 
the reasons for non-compliance must be recorded in writing. Departments must indicate good cause or reason for not having complied with the filling of SMS 
posts within the prescribed timeframes.

In terms of regulation 1/VIIc.1A.2, read with \regulation 4/1/C.3 of the Public Service Regulations, all funded SMS posts must be advertised within six months 
after becoming vacant and be filled within twelve monthe after becoming vacant. In the event of none-compliance with this regulation, the relevant execurive 
authority of Head of Department must take appropriate disciplinary steps in terms  section 16A(1)or (2) of the Public Service Act.

TABLE 5.4.5- DISCIPLANRY STEPS TAKEN FOR NOT COMPLYING WITH THE PRESCRIBED TIMEFRAMES FOR FILL-
ING SMS POSTS WITHIN 12 MONTHS AFTER BECOMING VACANT

5.4 FILLING OF SMS POSTS

SMS Level

Total number 

of Funded SMS 

Posts per Level

Total number of 

SMS Posts  

Filled per Level

% of SMS Posts 

Filled per Level

Total Number of 

SMS Posts  

Vacant per Level

% of SMS Posts 

Vacant per Level

Band A (Level 13) 5 4 80 1 20

Band B (Level 14) 2 2 100 0 0

Band C (Level 15) Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0

TOTAL 8 7 87.5 1 12.5

SMS Level

Total number 

of Funded SMS 

Posts per Level

Total number of 

SMS Posts  

Filled per Level

% of SMS Posts 

Filled per Level

Total Number of 

SMS Posts  

Vacant per Level

% of SMS Posts 

Vacant per Level

Band A (Level 13) 5 5 100 0 0

Band B (Level 14) 2 2 100 0 0

Band C (Level 15) Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0

TOTAL 8 8 100 0 0

SMS Level

Number of Vacancies per 

Level Advertised in 6 Months 

of becoming Vancant

Number of Vancancie per 

Level Filled in 6 Months 

after becoming Vacant

Number of Vacancies per 

Level not Filled in 6 Months 

but Filled in 12 Months

Band A (Level 13) 0 0 0

Band B (Level 14) 0 0 0

Band C (Level 15) Head of Department 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months : Reasons for vacancies not advertised within 12 months:

Not applicable Not applicable

Disciplinary taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes

Not applicable
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TABLE 5.5.1 - JOB EVALUATION

TABLE 5.5.2 - PROFILE OF EMPLOYEES WHOSE POSITIONS WERE UPGRADED DUE TO THEIR POSTS BEING UPGRADED

TABLE 5.5.3 - EMPLOYEES WHOSE SALARY LEVEL EXCEED THE GRADE DETERMINED BY JOB EVALUATION [I.T.O 
PSR 1.V.C.3]

TABLE 5.5.4 - PROFILE OF EMPLOYEES WHOSE SALARY LEVEL EXCEEDED THE GRADE DETERMINED BY JOB 
EVALUATION [I.T.O. PSR 1.V.C.3]

5.5 JOB EVALUATION 

Salary Band
Number  

of Posts

Number  

of Jobs  

Evaluated

% of Posts 

Evaluated

Number of 

Posts  

Upgraded

% of  

Upgraded 

Posts  

Evaluated

Number 

of Posts 

Downgraded

% of  

Downgraded 

Posts  

Evaluated

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 140 1 0.7 1 100 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 139 1 0.7 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 290 3 1 1 33.3 0 0

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 57 5 8.8 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band A 5 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band B 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band C 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 634 10 1.6 2 20 0 0

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 1 1 2

Total 0 0 1 1 2

Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

Occupation
Number of 

Employees

Job Evaluation 

Level

Remuneration 

Level

Reason for 

Deviation

No of 

Employees  

in Dept

N/A          

Total 0         

Percentage of Total Employment 0       0

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0
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TABLE 5.6.1 - ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY SALARY BAND

TABLE 5.6.2 - ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION

5.6 EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Salary Band

Employment  

at Beginning  

of Period  

(AS 1 April 2008)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent 136 10 6 4.4

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent 128 43 20 15.6

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), Permanent 218 59 22 10.1

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), Permanent 51 10 10 19.6

Senior Management Service Band A, Permanent 5 2 3 60

Senior Management Service Band B, Permanent 1 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band C, Permanent   0 0 0

TOTAL 539 124 61 11.3

Occupation

Employment  

at Beginning  

of Period  

(1 April 2008)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Cultural Officers 17 5 1 5.9

Heritage Officers 8 1 1 12.5

Librarians 32 13 2 6.3

Sport Promotion Officers 28 2 5 17.9

Archivists 20 12 2 10

Middle Management (Level 9-12) 58 10 10 17.2

Senior Management (Level 13-15) 8 2 1 12.5

TOTAL 171 45 22 12.9
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TABLE 5.6.3 - REASONS WHY STAFF ARE LEAVING THE DEPARTMENT

TABLE 5.6.4 - PROMOTIONS BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION

TABLE 5.6.5 - PROMOTIONS BY SALARY BAND

Termination Type Number
Percentage of Total  

Resignations

Percentage of Total  

Employment
Total

Death, Permanent 1 1.6 0.2 61

Resignation, Permanent 32 52.5 5.7 61

Discharged due to ill health, Permanent 1 1.6 0.2 61

Dismissal-misconduct, Permanent 1 1.6 0.2 61

Retirement, Permanent 7 11.5 1.2 61

Other, Permanent (Transfers to other Departments) 19 31.1 3.4 61

TOTAL 61 100 10.8 61

Resignations as % of Employment

10.82%

Occupation

Employment  

at Beginning  

of Period  

(1 April 2008)

Promotions  

to another  

Salary Level

Salary Level  

Promotions  

as a % of  

Employment

Progressions  

to another  

Notch within  

Salary Level

Notch progressions  

as a % of  

Employment

Cultural Officers 17 1 5.9 7 41.2

Heritage Officers 8 1 12.5 4 50

Librarians 32 1 3.1 18 56.3

Sport Promotion Officers 28 1 3.6 14 50

Archivists 20 1 5 32 160

Middle Management (Level 9- 12) 58 6 10.3 23 39.7

Senior Management (Level 13- 15) 8 1 12.5 2 25

TOTAL 171 12 7 100 58.5

Salary Band

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period  

(1 April 2008)

Promotions  

to another  

Salary Level

Salary Level 

Promotions  

as a % of  

Employment

Progressions to 

another Notch 

within Salary 

Level

Notch 

 progressions  

as a % of  

Employment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent 136 0 0 76 55.9

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent 128 4 3.1 93 72.7

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), Permanent 218 13 6 141 64.7

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), Permanent 51 6 11.8 23 45.1

Senior management (Levels 13-16), Permanent 6 1 16.7 2 33.3

TOTAL 539 24 37.6 335 62.2
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TABLE 5.7.1 - TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (INCL. EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES) PER OCCUPATIONAL  
CATEGORY (SASCO)

TABLE 5.7.2 - TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (INCL. EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES) PER OCCUPATIONAL BANDS

5.7 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

Occupational Categories
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Legislators, senior officials and 

managers, Permanent 
2 1 0 3 1 2 2 0 4 1 9

Professionals, Permanent 17 13 0 30 15 21 16 0 37 22 104

Clerks, Permanent 17 20 0 37 2 29 46 0 75 33 147

Craft and related trades 

workers, Permanent 
1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Plant and machine operators 

and assemblers, Permanent 
2 12 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 14

Elementary occupations, 

Permanent 
20 75 0 95 1 10 34 0 44 7 147

Technician 18 31 0 49 18 18 25 1 44 29 140

TOTAL 77 154 0 231 37 80 123 1 204 92 564

Employees with disabilities 1 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 1 4 8

Occupational Bands
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Top Management, Permanent 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Management, Permanent 1 1 0 2 0 2 2 0 4 1 7

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and 

mid-management, Permanent 

10 14 0 24 8 6 8 0 14 4 50

Skilled technical and academi-

cally qualified workers, junior 

management, supervisors, 

foremen, Permanent 

28 36 0 64 26 34 40 0 74 73 237

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making, Permanent 
18 57 0 75 3 27 47 1 75 12 165

Unskilled and defined decision 

making, Permanent 
19 46 0 65 0 11 26 0 37 2 104

TOTAL 77 154 0 231 37 80 123 1 204 92 564
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TABLE 5.7.3 - RECRUITMENT

TABLE 5.7.4 - PROMOTIONS

Occupational Bands
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Top Management, Permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management, Permanent 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 2

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and  

mid-management, Permanent 

3 0 0 3 1 2 4 0 6 0 10

Skilled technical and academically  

qualified workers, junior  

management, supervisors,  

foremen, Permanent 

20 7 0 27 2 19 9 0 28 2 59

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making, Permanent 
14 9 0 23 0 10 9 0 19 1 43

Unskilled and defined decision 

making, Permanent 
3 3 0 6 0 3 1 0 4 0 10

TOTAL 40 19 0 59 4 34 24 0 58 3 124

 

 
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

No data 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Occupational Bands
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Senior Management, Permanent 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and  

mid-management, Permanent 

3 0 0 3 1 0 2 0 2 0 6

Skilled technical and 

academically qualified workers, 

junior management, supervisors, 

foremen, Permanent 

6 3 0 9 0 2 2 0 4 0 13

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making, Permanent 
2 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Unskilled and defined decision 

making, Permanent 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 11 5 0 16 1 2 5 0 7 0 24

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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TABLE 5.7.5 - TERMINATIONS

TABLE 5.7.6 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION

TABLE 5.7.7 - SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Occupational Bands
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Professionally qualified and 

experienced specialists and  

mid-management, Permanent 

1 1 1 3 0 1 3 0 4 2 9

Skilled technical and 

academically qualified workers, 

junior management, supervisors, 

foremen, Permanent 

2 5 0 7 1 9 3 0 12 3 23

Semi-skilled and discretionary 

decision making, Permanent 
3 7 0 10 0 3 10 0 13 0 23

Unskilled and defined decision 

making, Permanent 
2 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 6

TOTAL 8 15 1 24 1 13 16 0 29 7 61

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 2

Disciplinary action 
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Disciplinary action taken against 

employees
4 12 0 16 3 4 3 0 7 1 27

TOTAL 4 12 0 16 3 4 3 0 7 1 27

Occupational Categories
Male, 

African

Male, 

Coloured

Male, 

Indian

Male, 

Total 

Blacks

Male, 

White

Female, 

African

Female, 

Coloured

Female, 

Indian

Female, 

Total 

Blacks

Female, 

White
Total

Legislators, Senior Officials  

and Managers 
2 1 0 3 1 2 2 0 4 1 9

Professionals 17 13 0 30 15 21 16 0 37 22 104

Technicians and Associate  

Professionals 
18 31 0 49 18 18 25 1 44 29 140

Clerks 17 20 0 37 2 29 46 0 75 33 147

Service and Sales Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery 

Workers 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Labourers and Related Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related Trades Workers 1 2 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Plant and Machine Operators  

and Assemblers 
2 12 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 14

Elementary Occupations 20 75 0 95 1 10 34 0 44 7 147

TOTAL 77 154 0 231 37 80 123 1 204 92 564

Employees with disabilities 1 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 1 4 8
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TABLE 5.8.1 PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS BY SMS MEMBERS AS ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

TABLE 5.8.2 REASONS FOR NOT HAVING CONCLUDED PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS FOR ALL SMS MEMBERS AS 
ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

TABLE 5.8.3- DISCIPLINARY STEPS TAKEN AGAINST SMS MEMBERS FOR NOT HAVING CONCLUDED PERFOR-
MANCE AGREEMENTS AS ON 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

5.8 PERFORMANCE AGREEEMENTS

SMS Level
Total number of Funded 

SMS Posts per Level

Total number of SMS 

Posts filled per Level

Total Number of 

Signed Performance 

Agreements per level

Signed Performance 

Agreements as % of 

Total Number of SMS 

Members per level

Band A (Level 13) 5 4* 4 80

Band B (Level 14) 2 2 2 100

Band C (Level 15) Head of Department 1 1 1 100

TOTAL 8 7 7 87.5

* - 1 SMS post vacant.

Reasons for not having concluded Performance Agreements for all SMS Members

Not applicable

Disciplinary steps taken against SMS Members for not having concluded Perfromance Agreements

Not applicable
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TABLE 5.9.1 - PERFORMANCE REWARDS BY RACE, GENDER AND DISABILITY

TABLE 5.9.2 - PERFORMANCE REWARDS BY SALARY BAND FOR PERSONNEL BELOW SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
SERVICE

TABLE 5.9.3 - PERFORMANCE REWARDS BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION

5.9 PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Demographics
Number of  

Beneficiaries

Total  

Employment at 

begin of cycle

Percentage  

of Total  

Employment

Cost (R000)

Average Cost 

per Beneficiary 

(R)

African, Female 12 65 18.5 45,507 3,792

African, Male 16 64 25.0 37,127 2,320

Asian, Female 0 2 0.0 10,499 0

Asian, Male 1 1 100.0 18,959 18,959

Coloured, Female 63 120 52.5 262,162 4,161

Coloured, Male 73 155 47.1 232,014 3,178

Total Blacks, Female 75 187 40.1 319,168 4,256

Total Blacks, Male 90 220 40.9 288,100 3,201

White, Female 58 98 59.2 326,385 5,627

White, Male 26 34 76.5 189,012 7,270

TOTAL 249 539 46.2 1,122,665 4,509

Salary Band
Number of 

Beneficiaries

Total  

Employment at 

begin of cycle

Percentage  

of Total  

Employment

Cost 

Average Cost 

per Beneficiary 

(R)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 35 136 25.7 91,875 2,625

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 75 128 58.6 111,244 1,483

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 110 218 50.5 635,314 5,776

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 26 51 51 230,317 8,858

TOTAL 246 533 46.2 1,068,750 4,345

Critical Occupations
Number of 

Beneficiaries

Total 

Employment 

at begin of 

cycle

Percentage 

of Total 

Employment

Cost (R’000)

Average Cost 

per Beneficiary 

(R)

Cultural Officers 6 8 75 34,997 5,833

Heritage Officers 3 5 60 0 0

Librarians 10 18 55.6 51,586 5,159

Sport Promotion Officers 10 23 43.5 88,000 8,800

Archivists 4 11 36.4 88,000 22,000

Middle Management (9-12) 26 46 56.5 97,843 3,763

Senior Management (13-15) 3 7 42.9 52,915 17,638

TOTAL 62 118 52.5 413,341 6,666,790
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TABLE 5.9.4 - PERFORMANCE RELATED REWARDS (CASH BONUS) BY SALARY BAND FOR SENIOR MANAGE-
MENT SERVICE

SMS Band
Number of 

Beneficiaries

Total  

Employment 

at begin  

of cycle

Percentage 

of Total  

Employment

Cost (R’000)

Average  

Cost per  

Beneficiary 

(R)

% of SMS 

Wage Bill

Personnel 

Cost SMS 

(R’000)

Band A 3 4 75 54 17,971 1.1 2,843

Band B 0 2 0 0 0 0 1116

Band C 0 0 0 0 0 0 647

TOTAL 3 6 50 54 17,971 1 4,606
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TABLE 5.10.1 - FOREIGN WORKERS BY SALARY BAND

TABLE 5.10.2 - FOREIGN WORKERS BY MAJOR OCCUPATION

5.10 FOREIGN WORKERS

Salary Band

Employment 

at  

Beginning 

Period

Percentage 

of Total

Employment 

at End of 

Period

Percentage 

of Total

Change in 

Employment

Percentage 

of Total

Total  

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period

Total  

Employment 

at End of 

Period

Total 

Change in 

Employment

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8) 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Abnormal Appointment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Major Occupation

Employment 

at  

Beginning 

Period

Percentage 

of Total

Employment 

at  

Beginning 

Period

Percentage 

of Total

Change in 

Employment

Percentage 

of Total

Total  

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period

Total  

Employment 

at End of 

Period

Total 

Change in 

Employment

Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionals and managers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0



152

TABLE 5.11.1 - SICK LEAVE FOR JAN 2008 TO DEC 2008

TABLE 5.11.2 - DISABILITY LEAVE (TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT) FOR JAN 2008 TO DEC 2008

TABLE 5.11.3 - ANNUAL LEAVE FOR JAN 2008 TO DEC 2008

5.11 LEAVE UTILISATION

Salary Band Total Days

% Days with  

Medical 

Certification

Number of 

Employees 

using Sick 

Leave

% of Total 

Employees 

using Sick 

Leave

Average 

Days per 

Employee

Estimated 

Cost (R’000)

Total 

number of 

Employees 

using Sick 

Leave

Total  

number of 

days with 

medical 

certification

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 833 42 90 17.9 9 158 502 350

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1327 43.1 167 33.3 8 325 502 572

Highly skilled production  

(Levels 6-8) 
1281 59.6 188 37.5 7 625 502 764

Highly skilled supervision  

(Levels 9-12) 
392 31.9 50 10 8 322 502 125

Senior management  

(Levels 13-16) 
33 84.8 7 1.4 5 48 502 28

TOTAL 3866 47.6 502 100 8 1477 502 1839

Salary Band Total Days Taken
Average days per 

Employee

Number of Employees 

who took leave

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 2259 21 110

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 3630 18 202

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 4958 19 259

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 1301 19 67

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 152 15 10

TOTAL 12300 19 648

Salary Band Total Days

% Days with 

Medical 

Certification

Number of 

Employees 

using 

Disability 

Leave

% of Total 

Employees 

using 

Disability 

Leave

Average 

Days per 

Employee

Estimated 

Cost (R’000)

Total 

number of 

days with 

medical 

certification

Total 

number of 

Employees 

using 

Disability 

Leave

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 R 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 84 100 3 100 28 R 25 84 3

Highly skilled production 

(Levels 6-8) 
73 100 4 100 18 R 30 73 4

Highly skilled supervision 

(Levels 9-12) 
0 0 0 0 0 R 0 0 0

TOTAL 157 100 7 100 22 R 55 157 7
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TABLE 5.11.4 - CAPPED LEAVE FOR JAN 2008 TO DEC 2008

TABLE 5.11.5 - LEAVE PAYOUTS

Total days of 

capped leave 

taken

Average number 

of days taken 

per employee

Average capped 

leave per  

employee as at 

31 December 

2008

Number of 

Employees who 

took Capped 

leave

Total number of 

capped leave 

available at 31 

December 2008

Number of 

Employees as 

at 31 December 

2008

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 65 8 33 8 3494 105

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 236 16 11 15 1890 172

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 416 15 24 27 5413 224

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 46 12 38 4 1822 48

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0 44 0 311 7

TOTAL 763 14 23 54 12930 556

Reason Total Amount (R’000) Number of Employees
Average Payment per 

Employee (R)

Capped leave payouts on termination of 

service for 2007/08 
88 35 2514

Current leave payout on termination of service 

for 2007/08 
45 11 4091

TOTAL 133 46 2891
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TABLE 5.12.1 - STEPS TAKEN TO REDUCE THE RISK OF OCCUPATIONAL EXPOSURE

TABLE 5.12.2 - DETAILS OF HEALTH PROMOTION AND HIV/AIDS PROGRAMMES [TICK YES/NO AND PROVIDE 
REQUIRED INFORMATION]

5.12 HIV/AIDS- HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting HIV 
& related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS to 

implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 

1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide 

her/his name and position. 

Yes   Dr NZ Makosana (Chief Director: Corporate Services)

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or have you 

designated specific staff members to promote health and 

well being of your employees? If so, indicate the number 

of employees who are involved in this task and the annual 

budget that is available for this purpose. 

Yes   

The Departments has contract the employee wellness 

service to the Careways groupwho provide the service 

at a current cost of  R155 400 for a period of 12 months.

3. Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance 

or Health Promotion Programme for your employees? If so, 

indicate the key elements/services of the programme. 

Yes   

Focusing on preventative, curative and rehabilitation 

aspects of health. Key elements of the EAP: Training in 

terms of EAP, Counselling services; Electronic wellness 

programmes;Critical Incidence and Trauma debriefing; 

Specialised Development Intervention; Clinical 

Performance Management

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as 

contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public 

Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the names 

of the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s) 

that they represent. 

Yes   

Dr NZ Makosana                 (CHAIRPERSON)

2. Mr R Mandulo                Sport Health

3. Ms R Khan                      Libraries

4. Mr SRD Julie                    HR & GSS

5. Ms L Claasen                   Arts & Culture

6. Ms F Carelse                    Museums

7. Ms P Mlumbi                   Libraries 

8. Ms T Aploon                     (HR & GSS & Scribe) 

5. Has the department reviewed the employment policies 

and practices of your department to ensure that these do 

not unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis 

of their HIV status? If so, list the employment policies/

practices so reviewed. 

Yes   
Employment Equity Plan and the Transversal HIV & 

AIDS Workplace Policy . Leave Policy

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-

positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive 

from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these 

measures. 

Yes   

EAP: mechanisms were established to maintain 

confidentiality and the programme does not exclude 

any person as well as affected family members. During 

this year a number of VCT sessions were held at which 

staff were encouraged to go for voluntary testing.Also 

23 staff were trained in peer counselling.

7. Does the department encourage its employees to 

undergo Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list the 

results that you have achieved. 

Yes   
This information is not available due to confidentiality 

reasons

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to 

monitor & evaluate the impact of your health promotion 

programme? If so, list these measures/indicators. 

Yes   
EAP: Monthly statistics; quarterly review reports and 

annual impact reports. 
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TABLE 5.13.1 - COLLECTIVE AGREEMENTS

none

TABLE 5.13.2 - MISCONDUCT AND DISCIPLINE HEARINGS FINALISED

TABLE 5.13.3 - TYPES OF MISCONDUCT ADDRESSED AND DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS

5.13 LABOUR RELATIONS

Disciplinary hearings Number

Hearings conducted 6

TOTAL 6

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number Percentage

Counselling 0 0.0%

Verbal warnings 0 0.0%

Written warnings 3 37.5%

Final written warnings 4 50.0%

Probation extended 0 0.0%

Dismissal 1 12.5%

Total 8

Type of misconduct Number Percentage

Absent from work without reason or permission 3 23.1%

Sick leave abuse 0 0.0%

Unauthorised leave 4 30.8%

Misuse of leave procedure 0 0.0%

Financial misconduct 2 15.4%

Tampering with state assets 0 0.0%

Under the influence of substance / alcohol 1 7.7%

Insubordination 1 7.7%

Failure to carry out lawful instruction(s) 1 7.7%

Unauthorise use of Government Owned Vehicle 0 0.0%

Late arrival  at work 1 7.7%

TOTAL 13
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TABLE 5.13.4 - GRIEVANCES LODGED

TABLE 5.13.5 - DISPUTES LODGED

TABLE 5.13.6 - STRIKE ACTIONS

TABLE 5.13.7 - PRECAUTIONARY SUSPENSIONS

Number of grievances addressed Number Percentage

Not resolved 8 40.0%

Resolved 12 60.0%

TOTAL 20 100.0%

Number of disputes addressed Number Percentage

Upheld 2 0

Dismissed 0 60%

Pending 2 40%

Total 4 100%

Strike Actions Total

Total number of person working days lost 21

Total cost(R’000) of working days lost 0

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0

Precautionary Suspensions Total

Number of people suspended 2

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 2

Average number of days suspended 156

Cost (R’000) of suspensions 39
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TABLE 5.14.1 - TRAINING NEEDS IDENTIFIED

5.14 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

Occupational Categories Gender Employment Learnerships

Skills  
Programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
managers 

Female 5 0 0 0 0

Male 4 0 3 2 5

Professionals 
Female 59 0 6 0 6

Male 45 0 6 0 6

Technicians and associate  
professionals 

Female 73 0 7 0 7

Male 67 0 7 0 7

Clerks 
Female 108 0 2 0 2

Male 39 0 2 0 2

Labourers in all areas
Female 0 0 1 0 1

Male 14 0 1 0 1

Service and sales workers 
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers 
Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 3 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 
Female 96 0 0 0 0

Male 51 0 0 0 0

Gender sub totals 
Female 341 0 16 0 16

Male 223 0 16 0 16

Total   564 0 32 0 32
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TABLE 5.14.2 - TRAINING PROVIDED

Occupational Categories Gender Employment

Learnerships
Skills  

Programmes 

& other 

short courses

Other forms 

of training
Total

Enrolled Certified

Legislators, senior officials and 
managers 

Female 5 0 0 0 0 0

Male 4 0 0 0 0 0

Professionals 
Female 59 0 0 44 0 44

Male 45 0 0 27 0 27

Technicians and associate  
professionals

Female 73 0 0 52 0 52

Male 67 0 0 53 0 53

Clerks 
Female 108 0 0 126 0 126

Male 39 0 0 40 0 40

Service and sales workers
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0

Labourers and related workers
Female 0 0 0 33 0 33

Male 14 0 0 59 0 126

Craft and related trades  
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 3 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations 
Female 96 0 0 0 0 0

Male 51 0 0 0 0 0

Gender sub totals 
Female 341 0 0 255 0 255

Male 223 0 0 179 0 179

Total   564 0 0 434 0 434
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TABLE 5.15.1 - INJURY ON DUTY

5.15 INJURY ON DUTY 

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 0 0

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 0   
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TABLE 516.1 - REPORT ON CONSULTANT APPOINTMENTS USING APPROPRIATED FUNDS

TABLE 5.16.2 - ANALYSIS OF CONSULTANT APPOINTMENTS USING APPROPRIATED FUNDS, I.T.O. HDIS 

TABLE 5.16.3 - REPORT ON CONSULTANT APPOINTMENTS USING DONOR FUNDS

TABLE 5.16.4 - ANALYSIS OF CONSULTANT APPOINTMENTS USING DONOR FUNDS, I.T.O. HDIS

5.16 UTILISATION OF CONSULTANTS

Project Title
Total number of 
consultants that 

worked on the project
Duration: Work days

Contract value in 
Rand

None 0 0 0

 

Total number of projects
Total individual 

consultants
Total duration: 

Work days
Total contract value 

in Rand

None 0 0 0

Project Title
Percentage 

ownership by  
HDI groups

Percentage 
management by  

HDI groups

Number of 
Consultants from HDI 
groups that work on 

the project

None 0 0   

Project Title
Total number of 
consultants that 

worked on the project
Duration: Work days

Donor and Contract 
value in Rand

None 0 0 0

 

Total number of projects
Total individual 

consultants
Total duration:  

Work days
Total contract  
value in Rand

None 0 0 0

Project Title
Percentage 

ownership by  
HDI groups

Percentage 
management by 

 HDI groups

Number of 
Consultants from HDI 

groups that work  
on the project

None 0 0   




